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EASTERN REGION STATIONS

Channel

U.S. Hoissi

Market DMA Rank  Affiliation  Station Analog/Digital Coverage
® Boston, MA [ ABC WCVB 5/20 2.2%
® Manchester, NH ABC WMUR 9/59
® Tampa-St. Petersburg, FL 13 IND WMOR 32/19 1.5%
® Orlando, FL 20 NBC WESH 2/11 1.1%
@ Pittsburgh, PA 21 ABC WTAE 4/51 1.1%
@ Baltimore, MD 24 NBC WBAL 11/59 1.0%
@ Greenville-Spartanburg, SC 35 NBC WYFF 4/59 0.7%
= @pd-Patem Beach, FL . 39 ABC WPBF 25/16 0.7%
® Greensboro/Winston-Salem, NC 46 NBC WX 12/31 0.6%
® lancaster/Harrisburg, PA 47 NBC WGAL 8/58 " 0.6%
® Louisville,KY..... 50 CBS WLKY 32/26 0.6%
® Plaitsburgh, NY/Burlington, VT 91 NBC WPTZ 5/14 0.3%
NBC WNNE 31725
CENTRAL REGION STATIONG
o - U.S. Household
Market h DMA Rank  Affiliation  Station Channel Coverage
Milwaukee, ‘Wi ABC WISN 12/34 0.8%
" Cinein NBC WLWT 5/35 0.8%
ABC KMBC 9/7 0.8%
UPN KCWE 29/31
NBC WDSU 6/43 0.6%
ABC KOCO 5/7 0.6%
@ Des Moines, 1A 72 CBS KCCI 8/31 0.4%
® Omaha, NE 78 ABC KETV 7/20 0.4%
v e Jaokson, M s > T ABC WAPT 16/21 0.3%
® Fort Smith/Fayetteville, AR 108 ABC KHBS 40/21 0.2%
' ABC KHOG 29/15
WESTERN REGION STATIONS
U.S. Household
Market DMA Rank  Affiliation  Station Channel Coverage
® Sacramento/Stockton/Modesto, CA 19 NBC KCRA 3/35 1.2%
@ Sacramento/Stockton/Modesto, CA w8 KQCA 58/46
@ Albuguergue, NM 49 ABC KOAT 7/21 0.6%
@ Honolulu, Hi 71 ABC KITV 4/40 0.4%
@® Monterey-Salinas, CA 120 NBC KSBW 8/10 0.2%
Total = 17.7%
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Company Profile

Hearst-Argyle Television, Inc. is a leading company in free over-the-air television broadcasting. Hearst-Argyle is the largest owner of ABC-
affiliated television stations, the second-largest NBC affiliate owner, and owner of some of the country’s most successful CBS and other
affiliates. Qur goal is to aggregate the largest audiences in key demographics on-air and on-line for our marketing partners. We achieve
this by emphasizing a combination of local news leadership with popular network and syndicated programs that are entertaining and
informative. Hearst-Argyle’s primary source of revenue is the sale of commercial air time to local and national advertisers. Our customer-
focused sales and marketing programs are solution-oriented, capitalizing on the impact of television advertising and the targeted reach of
our local Web sites, operated in partnership with Internet Broadcasting Systems (IBS). Regularly honored for journalistic accomplishment,
our stations generally rank first or second in their markets in local news ratings. Hearst-Argyle is majority owned by The Hearst
Corporation (www.hearst.com), one of the nation’s largest diversified communications companies with interests in magazine, newspaper
and business publishing and cable programming networks, among other businesses. Hearst-Argyle trades on the New York Stock

Exchange under the symbol “HTV”; the Company’s Web address is www.hearstargyle.com.

Financial Highlights

Figures in thousands except per share

Year ended December 31: 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
Revenues $407,313 $661,386 $747,281 $641,876 $721,311
Operating Income $142,034 $175,884 $205,235 $115,443 $265,631
Operating Cash Flow! $177,851 $287,530 $345,467 $245,154 $310,148
Operating Cash Flow Margin® 43.7% 43.5% 46.2% 38.2% 43.0%
Income Applicable to Common Stockholders® $ 63,627 $ 83,281 - $102,258 $ 88,321 $106,640
Income per Common Share—Diluted? $ 1.18 $ 1.00 $ 111 $ 096 $ 1135
Weighted Average Shares outstanding—Diluted 53,699 83,229 92,457 92,000 92,550

(1) Operating cash flow, also known as EBITDA, is a non-GAAP financial measure and should not be considered in isolation or as an alternative to operating income
{a GAAP financial measure) as an indicator of the Company’s operating performance. (See GAAP reconciliation table following the financial section.)
(2) SFAS 142-Adjusted
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(1) GAAP measurement; see Statement of Cash Flows in (Capitalization = Net long-term debt + Trust Preferred
financial section Securities + Stockholders’ Equity)

(Equity = Trust Preferred Securities + Stockholders’ Equity)
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President’s Letter to Shareholders

(from left to right}

Victor F. Ganzi, Chairman of the Board

David J. Barrett, President and Chief Executive Officer

Harry T. Hawks, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

The performance and accomplishments of the Hearst-Argyle
Television stations in 2002 are a testament to the strength and
resiliency of the local television business model and to the tal-
ents and skills of our people who do such good work every day
in our communities across the country. I am proud of all our
employees and grateful for their contributions and competitive-
ness. Unquestionably, their execution of our 2002 growth plan
helped us rebound from the extraordinarily difficult year of 2001.

Our station operators met challenges head-on last year, producing
financial results that compare favorably with any of our peers.
While these results did not match our record-level 2000 per-
formance, we did achieve strong company-wide growth in sales
and cash flow, with ten of our stations achieving record operat-
ing results.

Net operating revenues grew 12% to $721 million, with growth
across a broad range of advertiser categories. Political advertising
totaled $73 million and our NBC stations did an outstanding
job in generating $15 million in revenues for the Salt Lake City
Winter Olympic Games.

Operating cash flow (OCF), or EBITDA, grew to $310 million,
up 26% over 2001, and our 43% OCF margin was a sharp
improvement over 2001. Our stations converted 82% of their
revenue growth into incremental OCF, a positive indicator of
operating leverage and cost-management disciplines, particularly
in light of increased cost pressures in such areas as health and
welfare benefits and insurance. Moreover, our Company had
record 2002 free cash flow of $179 million. (Operating cash flow
and free cash flow are non-GAAP measures; we refer you to
the GAAP-reconciliation table following the financial section of
this Report for a full correlation to GAAP measurements.)

Income applicable to common stockholders of $106.6 million
and earnings per share of $1.15 increased by 21% and 20%,
respectively, over 2001 {as adjusted for SFAS 142), even includ-
ing a one-time gain in 2001.

These strong results contributed to a 12% increase in Hearst-
Argyle Television’s share price in 2002. We are pleased that
our shares outperformed the turbulent markets, exceeding the
performance of most media companies and the major indices.

HEARST-ARGYLE TELEVISION
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| to our business. We understand that cyclicality is unarttractive to
many investors. Yet these revenues are nevertheless very real,
they return consistently (if not annually), and, importantly, they

serve as validation of our stations’ long-term ctedibility, brand
identity and effective audience delivery.
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Certainly, our business has other challenges as well. Among just
a few issues, we're dealing with increasingly fierce competition
for viewers, excessive commercial inventory saturating local and
national markets, and challenges in reconciling the value of our
doecal service with heavily consolidated cable and satellite gate-
keepers I can tell you that we are at the forefront of working
ur..networks, program. providers and other partners,
stakeholders and constituents in shaping a new paradigm for
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President’s Letter continuee

We are well equipped to confront today’s challenges. The mass
audience still finds its way to broadcast television stations and
their networks for popular programs—whether they be of the
comedy, talk, drama, news, or reality genre—or for big events
such as the Olympics, the Super Bowl or the Academy Awards.
In 2002, we saw once again that there is no better and more
enduring viewer proposition, or advertiser proposition, than that
of broadcast stations and networks. It is our unique ability to
aggregate local mass audiences and deliver them to our adver-
tisers that gives us ongoing confidence about the local television
business model.

Taken in combination, the quality of our asset base, the strength of
our balance sheet, and the support of our principal shareholder,
The Hearst Corporation—coupled with the capabilities of your
management team—position Hearst-Argyle Television to become
an even more significant player in the local television business.

In the months ahead, we expect the Federal Communications
Commission (FCC) to complete its review of media ownership
rules and establish a new regulatory framework that will accom-
modate additional local television “duopolies,” and ease restric-
tions on television/newspaper cross-ownership. Our company
has been an active participant in these public policy deliberations
and we strongly believe that a relaxation of local media ownership
rules is appropriate and timely. Such changes should benefit the
local media business, affording consolidation and growth oppor-
tunities for our company.

Several of the important strategic initiatives we’ve undertaken in
recent years began to blossom in 2002,

Our joint venture participation in NBC Enterprises, which
leverages the scale and quality of our station lineup, is on a pos-
itive track with the syndication launches of “The John Walsh
Show” and “The Chris Matthews Show.” Each is attracting
growing audiences and earning a sustainable slot on station pro-
gram schedules.

Our early investment in the IBS Internet “network” has provided
our stations with a valuable online solution that combines local
and national content on branded local Web “channels.” These
local sites are a wonderful content and sales complement to our
local television franchises. The IBS network also includes the
television stations of NBC, Post-Newsweek, Cox and McGraw-
Hill, reaching some 8 million Web viewers. The Hearst-Argyle
sites alone reach some 2.5 million Web viewers, many in an
out-of-home workplace environment. Qur investment in this
business has been pointedly strategic and carefully managed, and
we are optimistic about continued growth prospects for IBS.

In 2002 we neared completion of our build-out of new digital
television transmission facilities for our stations. We’ve commit-
ted to invest approximately $70 million to meet our obligations
in the digital transition and we are now broadcasting numerous
prime-time programs in this exciting new format. There is still
much work ahead to secure cable carriage for our digital signals

and to advance digital set penetration, but we are encouraged
by the accelerating sales pace for these new television receivers,
and by the growing array of network prime-time programs now
being produced in high definition.

The capital cost of digital conversion has been burdensome for
our company and the entire television station industry, but on
a long horizon it is imperative for local television stations to
have a position on the digital technology platform to maintain
our relevance to viewers.

A most important priority for our company is to insure that we
operate with the highest ethical standards, and to communicate
our practice of these values of integrity to all of our stakeholders.
We have proactively embraced new standards of Corporate
Governance by implementing comprehensive financial certifica-
tion procedures, expanding the quality and scope of our financial
reporting, and adopting new rules and best-practice recommen-
dations from the SEC, NYSE and Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

Taking a leadership role in this process is Frank A. Bennack, Jr.,
the retired CEO of The Hearst Corporation, who has assumed
the role as our Board’s Presiding Director. Our company benefits
enormously from the stewardship of our controlling shareholder,
The Hearst Corporation, and from the important contributions
of its senior executives, several of whom serve as Board members.
This support has proven to be indispensable to our efforts to
build a strong and vital television company.

As 2002 concluded, Bob Marbut, the founder of Argyle Television
and one of the architects of what is now Hearst-Argyle Television,
stepped down from his role as Chairman. Bob will remain as an
active member of our Board, enabling us to benefit from his expe-
rience and wisdom.

I am delighted that Victor Ganzi, CEO of The Hearst
Corporation, will succeed Bob Marbut as Chairman of cur Board.
Victor has been a critically important participant in the forma-
tion, growth, and development of Hearst-Argyle Television and
we welcome his increased contributions. I know that our com-
pany and all of our stakeholders will benefit from Victor’s good
judgment, integrity, and leadership.

The powerful operating potential of local television stations and
the demonstrated ability of our people and our stations to
achieve leadership make us optimistic about the future. We are
hard at work delivering on the reasons why all of our stake-
holders come to us as their first choice in local television.

G

David ]J. Barrett
President & Chief Executive Officer

HEARST-ARGYLE TELEVISION






.Hearst-Argyle Television is ‘Where the News Comes First
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Hearst-Argyle Television’s award-wianing stations, staffed by
some of the industry’s most respected and critically acclaimed tel-
evision news journalists, deliver insightful, thought-provoking
and essential news coverage to our local communities.

We inform our viewers with election coverage. Qur “Commitment
2002” effort to inform and involve our local communities with
the most comprehensive political reporting resulted in 43
on-air candidate debates and more than 40 hours of campaign,
election and issues reporting and discourse. Both “Commitment
20027 and our trend-setting “Commitment 2000” earned the
USC Annenberg School’s prestigious national biennial Walter
Cronkite Award.

We provide vital weather alerts. WLKY-TV surpassed competing
stations’ coverage and combined ratings for November’s
Kentucky tornado news; WDSU-TV was on the ground with the
area’s largest, most experienced weather team for coverage of
Tropical Storm Isidore and Hurricane Lili; and WX kept
North Carolina well informed during the state’s severe ice
storm. Our dedicated satellite service, “HATSAT,” transmitted
the blinding images of the President’s Day Blizzard of 03 to our
stations nationwide, allowing them to provide “blanket” coverage
of this major weather event for their viewers.

We report local stories with national impact. The rescue of Penn-
sylvania’s trapped miners was watched on WTAE-TV more than
any competing station, as was KCRA’s coverage of the Laci
Peterson disappearance. WBAL-TV led its market with live
breaking-news coverage of the Maryland sniper crisis and, through
its work with the NBC NewsChannel, was a vital contributor to
NBC’s national coverage. WESH-TV’s EMMY-winning NASA
expertise made its coverage of the Columbia Shuttle tragedy by
far the most-watched in the region. HATSAT beamed these

reports to our stations nationwide, helping them connect their
local audiences with these human stories as they happened. Our
stations’ highly viewed Web sites—today aggregating some 2.5
million unique visitors and 70 million pageviews—brought our
audiences an even deeper awareness and understanding of these
events with continuing in-depth coverage.

We bring our viewers the issues straight from our nation’s Capital.
Vice President Cheney has been just one of many national fig-
ures interviewed by our Washington, DC, News Bureau,
complementing regular interviews with Washington politicians
representing Hearst-Argyle markets. Our Bureau’s focus on the
local impact of the war in Iraq provided our stations with a
trusted source of information.

‘We translate news leadership to ratings leadership. Hearst-Argyle
newscasts are consistently the #1 or #2 rated in 18 of 23 markets.
Collectively, Hearst-Argyle’s local newscasts aggregate more than
three times the prime-time audience of the most- watched national
cable news network.

We make ratings leadership a cornerstone of network partner-
ship. WISN-TV, WTAE-TV and KMBC-TV are consistently
among the top-rated ABC stations in the top 50 TV markets.
NBC affiliate WGAL-TV earns higher newscast ratings than
any other TV station in any of the top 50 markets. KCCI-TV,
a CBS affiliate, routinely earns the highest rating of any late
newscast in the top 100 TV markets.

Our journalism earns industry recognition. In addition to the
Cronkite Award, our stations’ honors in 2002 alone included
several National Headliner Awards, regional EMMYs and
Edward R. Murrow Awards, and “Best Newscast™ and “Station
of the Year” honors.

() HEARST-ARGYLE TELEVISION
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“ .. First with the most compelling entertainment and information.”

In addition to our highly watched newscasts, Hearst-Argyle Tele-
vision stations offer viewers some of the most popular network
programs and talk shows, and impactful local programming.

We offer the network programs people want to watch. Hearst-
Argyle is home to the most-watched ABC, NBC and CBS affiliates
under one corporate roof. Viewers in our markets come to
us to see such favorites as “Friends,” “The Practice,” “Law &
Order,” “CSI” and “Monday Night Football.”

We offer our local audiences the most popular talk shows.
“Qprah” is a powerful afternoon “lead-in” to evening news on
16 Hearst-Argyle stations. KOCO-TV achieved the highest rat-
ing for “Dr. Phil” of any TV station in the nation. “Dr. Phil,”
among the most successful new syndicated programs in years, is
now a staple on 10 Hearst-Argyle stations.

We’ve created exciting program partnerships. “The John Walsh
Show” and “The Chris Matthews Show” are among the newest of
many shows from Hearst-Argyle’s production/syndication partner-
ship with NBC Enterprises. “Walsh” was the 2nd-highest rated
new syndicated talk show in September 2002; by January 2003
the show’s household ratings had grown by 26%. “Matthews”
is building audiences that rival the networks’ Sunday morning
news talk shows.

We’re a destination for major local events. WCVB-TV, WBAL-TV
and WLKY-TV pace the field in local viewership of the Boston
Marathon, the Preakness and the Kentucky Derby, respectively.
KOAT-TV’s coverage of Albuquerque’s Balloon Festival
soars above the competition. Honolulu viewers annually
embrace KITV’s coverage of the perennial Merrie Monarch

Hula Festival. Our stations enjoy an enduring local identifica-

tion with these events.

We produce acclaimed local programming. WCVB-TV’s nightly
newsmagazine “Chronicle” earned a national Alfred I. duPont-
Columbia University Journalism Award—one of only two
bestowed nationwide to commercial TV stations over the
past year. “Chronicle,” which celebrated its 20th anniversary
in January 2002, is a consistent ratings leader and a pioneer in
local digital high-definition production.

We’re a trusted source for topical, issues-oriented local spe-
cials. In November, ABC’s Peter Jennings hosted “In Search Of
Young America,” a WISN-TV local “town hall meeting™ with
Milwaukee-area teens. It was one of the year’s highest-rated
local news specials.

We keep our viewers on top of the action for local and regional
sports. Whether it’s the New England Patriots, the Oklahoma
Sooners, the Kansas City Chiefs, the Florida Gators, the
Clemson Tigers, the Pittsburgh Steelers, the Cincinnati Bearcats,
the Nebraska Cornhuskers, the Arkansas Razorbacks or our
viewers’ favorite high school teams, Hearst-Argyle stations pro-
vide sports fans with coverage they can count on.

We outperform our networks’ audience levels. Hearst-Argyle’s
nerwork-affiliated TV stations, on the strength of our local
news leadership, popular syndicated programs, effective promo-
tion and the power.of our local brands, consistently exceed their
networks’ national ratings. During the November 2002 sweeps,
our ABC affiliates on average delivered a 25% higher rating in
the “key demos™ than the ABC Network average; our two CBS
affiliates outdelivered the CBS average by more than 50%; and
our WB station doubled that network’s rating. In the February
2002 sweeps, KCRA-TV and KSBW-TV “overindexed” NBC’s
prime-time QOlympics ratings by 19% and 15%, respectively.

HEARST-ARGYLE TELEVISION @
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“ . First because we help build strong brands.”

Hearst-Argyle Television stations and Web sites reach more
than 15 million viewers in a given week. This mass-audience
reach, and the “convergence” advertising opportunities offered
through our Web sites—coupled with the special bonds we hold
within our communities—make our stations essential partners
in achieving marketers’ objectives. Whether we're producing or
airing an ad for a mass local audience, or designing a custom
promotion using our Web sites, we’re successfully creating
value-added solutions and helping build brands for our clients.

We achieve results for our marketing partners. In 2002, auto-
makers successfully used incentives and TV ad spending as a
“catalyst” for car and truck sales. Our local TV stations, key
partners with their domestic and foreign automotive customers,
achieved 7% growth in 2002 car and truck advertising and
demonstrated that local TV is the very best sales stimulant for
the automotive industry.

Our innovative marketing programs serve sponsors and com-
munities. Responding to post-9/11 declines in Boston tourism,
WCVB-TV launched “Come Celebrate Boston and New
England: Where American History and Patriotism Began,”
advertiser-supported vignettes showcasing historical attractions.
WDSU-TV initiated a sponsored campaign celebrating the
bicentennial of the Louisiana Purchase. KCRA-TV/KQCA-TV
and their Web site secured a first-of-its-kind grant from the
California Office of Traffic Safety and Mothers Against Drunk
Driving for a campaign raising awareness of underage drinking
and driving.

‘We create opportunities for our marketing partners to meet our
viewers. WESH-TV set a sales record for its 3rd annual Healthy
Lifestyles Expo—featuring expert advice from Hearst’s Good
Housekeeping magazine. Nine Hearst-Argyle stations are now
hosting healthy-lifestyles expositions, attracting tens of thou-
sands of health-conscious visitors.

HEARST-ARGYLE TELEVISION






“ .. First to help build stronger communities.”

(from left to right)
Larry Adam, Founder of Harvest for the Hungry
Wanda Draper, WBAL-TV Public Affairs. Director

Bill Ewing, CEO of the Maryland Food Bank
Bill Fine, WBAL-TV President/General Manager

For generations, Hearst-Argyle stations, in keeping with our
corporate values, have taken a leadership role in local community
service. We believe our involvement in the health and vitality of
our communities contributes to a trusted and enduring relation-
ship with our viewers. This important bond is respected by our
advertisers, allowing us to “do well by doing good.” Among other
efforts, we've supported this commitment over the years by:

Helping feed the hungry. WBAL-TV’s award-winning support of
Harvest for the Hungry has helped collect more than 12 million
pounds of food for local food banks; WISN-TV’s Food For
Families has collected more than 3,500 tons. WAPT-TV’s Food
For Families has brought in hundreds of thousands of cans
through Mississippi high school football games. KSBW-TV
viewers delivered 13 tons of food for a 2002 Salvation Army
emergency drive,

Helping clothe the needy. WTAE-TV’s Project Bundle-Up has
collected more than $7 million and helped deliver winter coats

for 144,000 children and seniors. WBAL-AM’s Coats for Kids
annual campaign has collected tens of thousands of coats for
needy children.

Assisting children. WPBF-TV’s Taking The Lead generated more
than 6,000 volunteer hours and thousands of dollars to equip
needy students with school supplies. KETV’s 7 Can Help Kids
provides Omaha students thousands of backpacks of school
supplies. WDSU-TV’s Teacher Connection offers homework
help via phone and e-mail. WLKY-TV’s Wednesday’s Child was
honored by the U.S. Congressional Coalition on Adoption for
helping more than 2,000 children find homes.

Providing information for health, well-being and safety. WXII-TV’s
weekly community police reports have earned it a Crimestoppers
TV Station of the Year Award. WMOR-TV’s drug education
program Teen Connection earned the Partnership for a Drug Free
Florida’s Governors Award.

HEARST-ARGYLE TELEVISION
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Selected Financial Data

The selected financial data should be read in conjunction with
the historical financial statements and notes thereto included
elsewhere herein and in “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” As
discussed herein and in the notes to the accompanying consoli-
dated financial statements, on August 29, 1997 (effective
September 1, 1997, for accounting purposes), The Hearst
Corporation {“Hearst”) contributed its television broadcast
group and related broadcast operations, Hearst Broadcast
Group, to Argyle Television, Inc. (“Argyle”), and merged the
wholly-owned subsidiary of Hearst with and into Argyle, with
Argvle as the surviving corporation (renamed Hearst-Argyle
Television, Inc., “Hearst-Argyle” or the “Company”) (the
“Hearst Transaction”). The merger was accounted for as a pur-
chase of Argyle by Hearst in a reverse acquisition. Effective June 1,
1998, the Company exchanged its WDTN and WNAC/WPRI
stations with STC Broadcasting, Inc., and certain related entities
{collectively “STC”) for KSBW, the NBC affiliate serving the
Monterey—Salinas, California, television market, and
WPTZ/WNNE, the NBC affiliates serving the Plattsburgh, New
York—Burlington, Vermont, television market {the “STC
Swap”). On January 5, 1999 (effective January 1, 1999, for
accounting purposes), the Company acquired, through a
merger transaction, all of the partnership interests in Kelly
Broadcasting Co., which includes KCRA, the Sacramento sta-
tion, and the related Time Brokerage Agreement (“TBA”) for
another station, KQCA, (the “Kelly Broadcasting Business”),
and Kelleproductions, Inc. (the “Kelly Transaction”). In con-
nection with the Kelly Transaction, the Company issued $450
million in senior notes to institutional investors, of which $340
million was issued in December 1998 and $110 million was
issued in January 1999. See Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements. On March 18, 1999, the Company acquired the
nine television and five radio stations (“Pulitzer Broadcasting
Business”) of Pulitzer Publishing Company (“Pulitzer”) in a
merger transaction {the “Pulitzer Merger™). In connection with
the Pulitzer Merger, the Company issued approximately 37.1
million shares of the Company’s Series A Common Stock to the
Pulitzer shareholders (the “Pulitzer Issuance”). Additionally, in

HEARST-ARGYLE TELEVISION

connection with the Kelly Transaction and the Pulitzer Merger,
the Company drew down $725 million from its revolving credit
facility (the “Financing”). On June 30, 1999 the Company
issued approximately 3.7 million shares of the Company’s Series

~A Common Stock to Hearst for $100 million (the “Hearst

Issuance”). On January 31, 2000, the Company exercised its
fixed-price option to acquire the outstanding stock of Channel
58, Inc. (the licensee for KQCA-TV which the Company previ-
ously operated under a TBA as discussed above). On August 1,
2000, Emmis Communications Corp. (“Emmis”) began manag-
ing the Company’s radio stations in Phoenix, Arizona (KTAR-
AM, KMVP-AM and KKLT-FM), (the “Phoenix Transaction™)
under a TBA for a period of up to three years. On August 8,
2000, the Company sold two of its radio stations, WXII-AM
(Greensboro, North Carolina) and WLKY-AM (Louisville,
Kentucky), to Truth Broadcasting Corporation. On March 28,
2001, the Company exchanged its radio stations in Phoenix,
Arizona (KTAR-AM, KMVP-AM and KKLT-FM), (the
“Phoenix Stations”) for WMUR-TV, the ABC affiliate serving
Manchester, New Hampshire, which is part of the Boston,
Massachusetts television market, in a three-party swap (the
“Phoenix/WMUR Swap”). See Note 3 to the consolidated finan-
cial statements. On April 30, 2001, pursuant to an Asset Purchase
Agreement entered into with WBOY-TV, Inc., the Company
acquired WBOY-TV, the NBC affiliate serving the Clarksburg—
Weston, West Virginia television market. On August 7, 2001
{August 1, 2001 for accounting purposes), the Company con-
tributed its production and distribution unit to NBC/Hearst-
Argyle Syndication, LLC, in exchange for a 20% equity
interest in this entity. See Note 3 of the consolidated financial
statements, On December 13, 2001, the Company sold
WBOY-TV. See Note 3 of the consolidated financial state-
ments. On December 20, 2001, the Company completed a pri-
vate placement with institutional investors of $200 million
principal amount of redeemable convertible preferred securi-
ties (the “Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities™)
through a subsidiary trust. See Note 9 of the consolidated
financial statements.



Years Ended December 31,

(In thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001®) 2000(¢) 1999(d) 1998(e)
Statement of Income Data:
Total revenues $ 721,311 § 641,876 & 747,281 $§ 661,386 § 407,313
Station operating expenses:

Salaries, benefits and other operating costs 331,643 323,520 325,736 300,420 173,880

Amortization of program rights 60,821 57,676 58,460 60,009 42,344

Depreciation and amortization 43,566 129,420 125,207 108,039 36,420
Corporate, general and administrative expenses 19,650 15,817 17,281 17,034 12,635
Special charge(® —_ — 15,362 — —
Operating income 265,631 115,443 205,235 175,884 142,034
Interest expense, net(8) 73,443 98,725 112,086 112,025 56,829
Dividends on redeemable convertible

preferred securities(®) 15,000 500 — — —
Other (income) expense, net() (299) (48,778) 3,930 — —
Equity in loss of affiliates(i) 3,269 6,461 6,234 279 —
Income before income taxes 174,218 58,535 82,985 63,580 85,205
Income taxes 66,201 27,448 38,060 31,270 36,348
Net income 108,017 31,087 44,925 32,310 48,857
Less preferred stock dividends® 1,377 1,422 1,422 1,422 1,422
Income applicable to common stockholders $ 106,640 $ 29,665 $ 43,503 $ 30,888 $§ 47,435
Income per common share—basic $ 1.16 $ 032 § 047 § 037 $ 0.89
Number of common shares used in the calculation 92,148 91,809 92,435 83,189 53,483
Income per common share—diluted $ 115  § 032 § 047 § 0.37 % 0.38
Number of common shares used in the calculation . 92,550 92,000 92,457 83,229 53,699

Results Adjusted for SFAS 142:
As reported income applicable to common stockholders $ 106,640 §$ 29,665 § 43,503 $ 30,888 §$§ 47435
Amortization of goodwill and certain

other intangibles (after tax) — 58,656 58,755 52,393 16,192
Adjusted income applicable to common stockholders $§ 106,640 § 88,321 § 102,258 $§ 83,281 §$§ 63,627
Adjusted income per common share—basic $ 1.16 $ 09 § 111§ 1.00 § 1.19
Adjusted income per common share—diluted $ 115  § 096 $ .11 § 1.00 $ 1.18
Balance Sheet Data (at year-end):

Cash and cash equivalents ) 4,442 § 3,260 § 5,780 § 5,632 § 380,980
Total assets $3,762,925  $3,779,705  $3,817,989 $ 3,913,227 $1,421,140
Total debt (including current portion) $ 973,499 $1,160,205 $1,448,492 $ 1,563,596 $ 842,596
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities $ 200,000 $ 200,000 N/A N/A N/A
Stockholders’ equity $1,579,262  $1,466,614 $1,444,376 $ 1,416,791 $ 324,390
Other Data:

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 205,452 § 165,853 § 189,311 § 138914 § 133,638
Net cash used in investing activities S (25,928) § (73,017) § (62,184) $(1,317,922) $ (47,531)
Net cash {used in) provided by financing activities $ (178,342) $ (95,356) § (126,979) $ 803,660 $ 282,114
Capital expenditures $ 25920 $§ 32,331 $§ 32,000 $ 52402 $§ 22,722
Program payments $ 59870 $ 57,385 § 58,797 $ 56,402 $§ 42,947

See accompanying notes on the following pages.
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Selected Financial Data continueo)

Notes to Selected Financial Data

(a} Includes the results of the Company’s 24 television stations which were owned for the entice period presented and the management fees derived by
three television stations (WMOR-TV, WPBF-TV and KCWE-TV) and two radio stations (WBAL-AM and WIYY-FM) managed by the Company
for the entire period presented (hereafter the “Managed Stations™).

(b} Includes: (i) the results of 23 {which excludes WMUR-TV and WBOY-TV) of the Company’s television stations which were owned for the entire
period presented; (ii) the management fees earned by the Company from the Managed Stations for the entire period presented; (iil) the Time
Brokerage Agreement (“TBA”) for WMUR-TV from January 1 through March 27, 2001; (iv) the results of WMUR-TV, after its acquisition by the
Company, from March 28 through December 31, 2001; (v) the TBA for KTAR-AM, KMVP-AM and KKLT-FM (the “Phoenix Stations™) from
January 1 through March 27, 2001; and (vi) the results of WBOY-TV after its acquisition by the Company, from April 30 to December 13, 2001,
the date of its disposition.

(c) Includes: (i) the results of 22 of the Company’s television stations which were owned for the entire period presented; (ii) the management fees
earned by the Company from the Managed Stations for the entire period presented; (iii) the TBA for KQCA from January 1 through January 31,
2000, and the results of KQCA, after its acquisition by the Company, from February 1 through December 31, 2000; {iv) WLKY-AM and WXII-
AM from January 1 through August 8, 2000; and (v) the Phoenix Stations from January 1 through July 31, 2000, and the TBA for the Phoenix
Stations from August 1 through December 31, 2000.

(d) Includes: {i) the results of 12 of the Company’s television stations which were owned for the entire period presented; (ii) the management fee
earned by the Company from the Managed Stations for the entire period presented; (iii) the results of the Kelly Broadcasting Business for the
entire period presented; and (iv) the results of the Pulitzer Broadcasting Business from March 19 through December 31, 1999.

(e) Includes: (i) the results of 10 of the Company’s television stations which were owned for the entire period presented; (ii) the management fee earned
by the Company from the Managed Stations for the entire period presented; {iii) the results of WDTN and the Company’s share of the 1996 Joint
Marketing and Programming Agreement relating to the television station WNAC/WPRI with the owner of another television station in the same
market from Janvary 1 through May 31, 1998; and (iv) the results of KSBW and WPTZ/WNNE from June 1 through December 31, 1998.

(f) Represents the one-time charge resulting from the cost of the Company’s early retirement program.
p 8 g pany 3 prog

(g) On July 1, 2002, the Company adopted the provisions of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statement No. 145, Rescission of
FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of SFAS No. 13, and Technical Corrections (“SFAS 145”). SFAS 145 eliminates the requirement
that gains and losses from the extinguishment of debt be aggregated and, if material, classified as an extraordinary item, net of the related income
tax effect. In accordance with SFAS 1435, the Company has reclassified certain amounts reported in prior periods that were previously classified as
extraordinary items, net of related income taxes. Such reclassifications had no effect upon the Company’s reported net income, but resulted in a
decrease of approximately $0.9 million and $4.1 million to reported Interest expense, net, in the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively, and an increase to reported Interest expense, net, of approximately $5.1 million and $17.3 million in the years ended December 31,
1999 and 1998, respectively.

(h) Represents dividends on Company obligated Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities of a wholly-owned subsidiary trust of the Company
holding solely parent company debentures in the amount of $200.0 million. See Note 9 of the consolidated financial statements.

(i) In the year ended December 31, 2002, Other (income) expense, net, represents an escrow closing fee paid to the Company in connection with the
sale of the Phoenix stations in March 2001. In the year ended December 31, 2001, Other (income) expense, net, represents the $72.6 million pre-
tax gain from the sale of the Phoenix Stations, partially offset by a $23.8 million pre-tax write-down of the carrying value of some of the
Company’s investments, In the year ended December 31, 2000, Other (income) expense, net, represents a $4.9 million write-down of the carrying
value of a portion of the Company’s investments, partially offset by the $1.1 million pre-tax gain from the sale of WXII-AM and WLKY-AM.

Represents the Company’s equity interest in the operating results of: (i) Internet Broadcasting Systems, Inc., from December 2, 1999, through
December 31, 2002; (ii) the IBS/HATV LLC in the three months ended December 31, 2002, upon achievement of year-to-date profitability; and
(iti} NBC/Hearst-Argyle Syndication, LLC, from August 1 through December 31, 2002. See Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

(k) Represents dividends on the preferred stock issued in connection with the acquisition of KHBS-TV/KHOG-TV.

(I} On January 1, 2002, the Company adopted the provisions of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statement No. 142, Gooduwill
and Other Intangible Assets (“SFAS 142”). SFAS 142 requires that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives no longer be amor-
tized but instead be assessed for impairment at least annually by applying a fair value-based test. The provisions of SFAS 142 are effective for
periods after adoption and retroactive application is not permitted. The historical results of periods prior to 2002 do not reflect the effect of
SFAS 142 and, accordingly, the adjusted results for the vear ended December 31, 2001, include amortization expense of $86.2 million ($58.6
million net of pro forma tax effects); the adjusted results for the year ended December 31, 2000, include amortization expense of $84.2 million
($58.8 million net of pro forma tax effects); the adjusted results for the year ended December 31, 1999, include amortization expense of $73.0
million ($52.4 million net of pro forma tax effects); and the adjusted results for the year ended December 31, 1998, include amortization
expense of $19.7 million ($16.2 million net of pro forma tax effects). In all periods presented, the adjusted results present net income applicable
to common stockholders and income per common share (basic and diluted) as if SFAS 142 had been implemented on January 1, 1998.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Introduction

Hearst-Argyle Television, Inc., and subsidiaries (the “Company”)
own and operate 24 network-affiliated television stations.
Additionally, the Company provides management services to two
network-affiliated and one independent television station and two
radio stations (the “Managed Stations™) in exchange for a man-
agement fee. See Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The Company’s management’s discussion and analysis of finan-
cial condition and results of operations is based on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of the
Company’s financial statements requires management to make
estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses and related disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, man-
agement evaluates its estimates, including those related to
allowances for doubtful accounts, program rights, barter and
trade transactions, useful lives of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, carrying value of investments, accrued liabili-
ties, contingent liabilities, income taxes, pension benefits and fair
value of financial instruments and stock options. Management
bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other
assumptions, which management believes to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Had management used different assumptions
in determining its estimates, the Company’s results may have
varied. The different types of estimates that are required to be
made by management in the preparation of the Company’s con-
solidated financial statements vary significantly in the level of
subjectivity involved in their determination. Management has
identified the estimates below as those which contain a relatively
higher level of subjectivity in their determination and therefore
could have a more material effect upon the Company’s reported
results had management used different assumptions.

Impairment Testing of Intangible Assets—In performing its
annual impairment testing of goodwill and FCC licenses, which
are both considered to be intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives, management must make a significant number of assump-
tions and estimates in applying a fair value-based test. To assist
in this process, the Company utilizes the services of an inde-
pendent valuation consulting firm. See Note 4 of the consoli-
dated financial statements. The assumptions and estimates
required under the impairment testing of goodwill and FCC
licenses included future market revenue growth, operating
profit margins, cash flow multiples, market revenue share and
the Company’s weighted average cost of capital, among others.
Furthermore, the impairment testing for FCC licenses required
management to identify and value a number of previously unrec-
ognized intangible assets in an allocation of fair values consistent
with the purchase price allocation method prescribed by SFAS
142 and relevant pronouncements of the Emerging Issues Task
Force. Upon adoption of SFAS 142 on January 1, 2002, the
Company completed its impairment review and found no
impairment to the carrying value of goodwill or FCC licenses.

R ]

For the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company completed
its impairment review during the fourth quarter of 2002 and
found no impairment to the carrying value of goodwill or FCC
licenses. Had management utilized either a different valuation
technique or different assumptions or estimates, the carrying val-
ues of the Company’s goodwill and FCC licenses as of January 1,
2002 and December 31, 2002 may have been different.
Management considers the assumptions used in its impairment
testing of intangible assets to be reasonable.

Investiment Carrying Values—The Company has investments in
non-consolidated affiliates, which are accounted for under the
equity method if the Company’s equity interest is from 20% to
50%, and under the cost method if the Company’s equity inter-
est is less than 20% and the Company does not exercise signifi-
cant influence over operating and financial policies.
Management reviews the carrying value of investments on an
ongoing basis and adjusts them to reflect net realizable value,
where necessary. See Note 3 of the consolidated financial state-
ments. As part of its analysis and determination of the net realiz-
able value of investments, management must make assumptions
and estimates regarding expected future cash flows, which
involves assessing the financial results, forecasts and strategic
direction of the investee companies. In addition, management
must make assumptions regarding discount rates, market growth
rates, revenue multiples, comparable company valuations and
other factors. Had management utilized different assumptions
and estimates in its assessment of the net realizable value of
investments, the carrying values of the Company’s investments as
of December 31, 2002, may have been different. Management
considers the assumptions used in its determination of invest-
ment carrying values to be reasonable.

Pension Assumptions—In computing projected benefit obliga-
tions and pension expense, management is required to make a
number of assumptions. To assist in this process, the Company
uses the services of an independent consulting firm. See Note 16
of the consolidated financial statements. To compute the
Company’s projected benefit obligations as of December 31,
2002, the Company used a discount rate of 6.88%, an expected
long-term rate of return on plan assets of 9.0%, and a rate of
compensation increase of 4.0%. In determining the discount rate
assumption of 6.88%, the Company used a measurement date of
September 30, 2002, and constructed a portfolio of bonds to
match the benefit payment stream that is projected to be paid
from the Hearst-Argyle pension plans. The benefit payment
stream is assumed to be funded from bond coupons and maturi-
ties as well as interest on the excess cash flows from the bond
portfolio. To compute the Company’s pension expense in the
year ended December 31, 2002, the Company used a discount
rate of 7.5%, an expected long-term rate of return on plan assets
of 9.0%, and a rate of compensation increase of 5.5%. To deter-
mine the discount rate assumption of 7.5%, the Company used a
rate approximating the Moody’s Aa rate as of a measurement
date of September 30, 2001. The expected long-term rate of
return on plan assets assumption of 9.0% is based on the
weighted average expected long-term returns for the funds
invested as of a measurement date of September 30, 2001.
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Management considers the assumptions used in its determination of projected benefit obligations and pension expense to be reasonable.
In calculating the Company’s pension expense for the year ending December 31, 2003, management anticipates using an assumed
expected long-term rate of return of 8.0%. Management considers the assumptions used in its determination of projected benefit

obligations and net pension cost to be reasonable.

Pension Assumptions Sensitivity Analysis

The weighted average assumptions used in computing the Company’s net pension cost and projected benefit obligation have a sig-
nificant effect on the amounts reported. A one-percentage-point change in each of the assumptions below would have the following
effects upon net pension cost and projected benefit obligation, respectively, in the year ended and as of December 31, 2002:

One-Percentage-Point Increase

One-Percentage-Point Decrease

Expected Rate of Expected Rate of

Discount Long-Term Compensation  Discount Long-Term Compensation
(In thousands) Rate Rate of Return Increase Rate Rate of Return Increase
Net pension cost $ (1,982) $(1,175) $ 531 $ 1,598 $1,175 § (460)
Projected benefit obligation $(14,555) § — $2,219 $17,034 ' $ — ${1,696)

Management has identified the accounting policies below as
critical to the Company’s business operations and the under-
standing of its results of operations. See Note 2 to the consoli-
dated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition—The Company’s primary source of rev-
enue is television advertising. Other sources include network
compensation and other revenues. Advertising revenues and
network compensation together represented approximately
97% of the Company’s total revenues in each of the years ended
December 2002, 2001 and 2000.

* Advertising Revenues. Advertising revenues are recognized
net of agency and national representatives’ commissions and
in the period when the commercials are broadcast. Barter and
trade revenues are included in advertising revenues and are
also recognized when the commercials are broadcast. See
“Barter and Trade Transactions” below.

¢ Network Compensation. Twelve of the Company’s stations
have network compensation agreements with ABC, ten have
agreements with NBC and two have agreements with CBS. In
connection with the ABC and CBS agreements, revenue is rec-
ognized when the Company’s station broadcasts specific net-
work television programs based upon a negotiated value for
each program. In connection with the NBC agreements, rev-
enue is recognized on a straight-line basis based upon the cash
compensation to be paid to the Company’s stations by NBC
each year. Unlike the ABC and CBS agreements, the NBC net-
work compensation is an annual amount and is not specifically
assigned to individual network television programs.

s Other Revenues. The Company generates revenue from other
sources, which include the following types of transactions
and activities: (i) management fees earned from The Hearst
Corporation (“Hearst”) {see Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements); (ii) services revenue from Lifetime
Entertainment Services (see Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements); (iii) services revenue from the produc-
tion of commercials for advertising customers or from the
production of programs to be sold in syndication; (iv) rental
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income pursuant to tower lease agreements with third parties
providing for attachment of antennas to the Company’s tow-
ers; and (v) other miscellaneous revenues, such as licenses
and rovyalties.

Accounts Receivable—The Company monitors advertisers’ cred-
itworthiness and adjusts credit limits as deemed appropriate. The
Company monitors collections and maintains an allowance for
estimated losses based upon the aging of such receivables and
specific collection issues that may be identified. Concentration of
credit risk with respect to accounts receivable is generally limited
due to the large number of geographically diverse customers,
individually small balances, and short payment terms.

Program Rights—Program rights represent the right to air vari-
ous forms of existing programming. Program rights and the cor-
responding contractual obligations are recorded when the
license period begins and the programs are available for use.
Program rights are carried at the lower of unamortized cost or
estimated net realizable value. Costs of off-network syndicated
products, first-run programming, feature films and cartoons are
amortized on the future number of showings on an accelerated
basis, contemplating the estimated revenue to be earned per
showing, but generally not exceeding five years.

Barter and Trade Transactions—Barter transactions represent
the exchange of commercial air time for programming. Trade
transactions represent the exchange of commercial air time for
merchandise or services. Barter transactions are generally
recorded at the fair market value of the commercial airtime
relinquished. Trade transactions are generally recorded at the
fair marker value of the merchandise or services received. Barter
program rights and payables are recorded for barter transac-
tions based upon the availability of the broadcast property.
Revenue is recognized on barter and trade transactions when
the commercials are broadcast; expenses are recorded when the
merchandise or service received is utilized.



Intangible Assets—Intangible assets are recorded at cost and
include FCC licenses, network affiliations, goodwill and other
intangible assets such as favorable leases. On January 1, 2002,
the Company adopted SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets (“SFAS 1427”). As a result, the Company no
longer amortizes goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives (FCC licenses), but instead it performs a review for
impairment annually, or earlier if indicators of potential impair-
ment exist. In connection with the adoption of SFAS 142, the
Company’s amortization expense related to goodwill and indef-
inite-lived intangibles decreased by approximately $86.2 million
annually. See Note 4 of the consolidated financial statements.
For the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company completed
its annual impairment review of goodwill and indefinite-lived
intangible assets during the fourth quarter of 2002. The
Company used a fair value approach in accordance with SFAS
142 and found no impairment to goodwill or indefinite-lived
intangible assets. Had management used different assumptions in
developing its estimates, the Company’s results may have varied.
Management considers the assumptions used in its estimates to be
reasonable. The Company amortizes intangible assets with deter-
minable useful lives over their respective estimated useful lives to
their estimated residual values. Upon adoption of SFAS 142 on
January 1, 2002, the Company determined the remaining useful
life of its network affiliation intangible assets to be approximately
28.5 years. The Company amortizes favorable lease intangible
assets over the respective terms of each lease. In accordance with
SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets, the Company evaluates the remaining useful
life of its intangible assets with determinable lives each reporting
period to determine whether events or circumstances warrant a
revision to the remalining period of amortization.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 142 on January 1, 2002, the
Company amortized goodwill and intangible assets over periods
ranging from three to 40 years. The recoverability of the carrying
values of goodwill and intangible assets was evaluated quarterly
to determine if an impairment in value had occurred. Pursuant to
SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets, an impairment in value was considered to have occurred
when it has been determined that the undiscounted future oper-
ating cash flows generated by the acquired business were not suf-
ficient to recover the carrying value of an intangible asset. If it
had been determined that an impairment in value had occurred,
goodwill and intangible assets would have been written down to
an amount equivalent to the present value of the estimated
undiscounted future operating cash flows to be generated by the
acquired business. At December 31, 2001, it was determined
that there had been no impairment of intangible assets.

Income Taxes—Income taxes are accounted for in accordance
with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (“SFAS 109”),
which requires that deferred tax assets and liabilities be recog-
nized using enacted tax rates for the effect of temporary differ-
ences between the book and tax basis of recorded assets and
liabilities. SFAS 109 also requires that deferred tax assets be
reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Income tax expense was approximately $66.2 million or
38.0%, of pre-tax income in the Company’s consolidated state-
ment of income for the year ended December 31, 2002.
Deferred tax assets were approximately $2.9 million and
deferred tax liabilities were approximately $844.8 million as of
December 31, 2002 (see Note 8§ of the consolidated financial
statements). The Company’s estimates of income taxes and the
significant items giving rise to the deferred assets and liabilities
are set forth in Note 8 of the consolidated financial statements.
These estimates reflect the Company’s assessment of actual
future taxes to be paid on items reflected in the financial state-
ments, giving consideration to both timing and probability.
Actual income taxes could vary from such estimates as a result
of future changes in income tax law or reviews by the Internal
Revenue Service or other tax authorities.

Related Party Transactions—The Company has Management
and Services Agreements as well as a series of other related
agreements with Hearst. Revenues and expenses recorded by the
Company in connection with such agreements amounted to less
than 1% of the Company’s total revenues and less than 1% of
the Company’s operating expenses in each of the years ended
December 2002, 2001 and 2000. See Note 14 to the consoli-
dated financial statements for more information on these and
other related party transactions.

Purchase Accounting—The Company’s policy for allocating the
purchase price in a purchase transaction is to identify and deter-
mine the fair value of all acquired assets (tangible and intangi-
ble) and assumed liabilities, in accordance with Accounting
Principles Board (“APB”) No. 16, Business Combinations, and
SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations. The Company utilizes
the services of an independent valuation consulting firm for the
purpose of establishing the fair values. The specialized tangible
assets in use at a broadcasting business are typically valued on
the basis of the replacement cost of a new asset less observed
depreciation. The appraisal of other fixed assets, such as fur-
nishings, vehicles, and office machines, is based upon a compa-
rable sales approach. Identified intangible assets are valued at
estimated fair value. The cash flow assumptions and discount
rates utilized to determine fair values vary according to a variety
of factors, such as a specific station’s geographical location,
demographics of markets served, existing market conditions,
growth potential, network affiliation, whether a station is VHF
or UHE existing program assets and the Company’s current
cost of capital.

Off-Balance Sheet Financings and Liabilities—Other than con-
tractual commitments and other legal contingencies incurred in
the normal course of business, agreements for future barter and
program rights not yet available for broadcast at December 31,
2002, and employment contracts for key employees, all of
which are disclosed in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company does not have any off-balance sheet
financings or liabilities. The Company does not have any major-
ity-owned subsidiaries that are not included in the consolidated
financial statements, nor does the Company have any interests
in or relationships with any special-purpose entities that are not
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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Significant Business Transactions
During the three-year period ended December 31, 2002, the
Company was involved in the following significant transactions:

¢ On January 31, 2000, the Company exercised its fixed-price
option to acquire the outstanding stock of Channel 58, Inc.
{the licensee for KQCA-TV in Sacramento, California). The
Company was previously programming and selling airtime of
KQCA-TV under a Time Brokerage Agreement (“TBA”). See
Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

e On August 8, 2000, the Company sold two of its radio sta-
tions, WXII-AM (Greensboro, North Carolina) and WLKY-
AM (Louisville, Kentucky), to Truth Broadcasting
Corporation for $3.5 million. See Note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

e On March 28, 2001, the Company exchanged its radio sta-
tions in Phoenix, Arizona (KTAR-AM, KMVP-AM and
KKLT-FM) (the “Phoenix Stations”), for WMUR-TYV, the
ABC affiliate serving Manchester, New Hampshire, which is
part of the Boston, Massachusetts, television market, in a
three-party swap (the “Phoenix Transaction”). The Company
sold the Phoenix Stations to Emmis Communications
Corporation {(“Emmis”) and purchased WMUR-TV from
WMUR-TYV, Inc. Prior to the swap, Emmis had been manag-
ing the Phoenix Stations pursuant to a TBA since August 1,
2000, and the Company had been managing WMUR-TV pur-
suant to a TBA since January 8, 2001 (effective January 1,
2001, for accounting purposes). See Note 3 to the consoli-
dated financial statements.

e In May 2001, the Company invested an additional $6 million
in Internet Broadcasting Systems, Inc. (“IBS”), thereby
increasing the Company’s original $20 million investment in
IBS made in December 1999 and bringing the Company’s
total investment in IBS to $26 million. With IBS, the
Company and other broadcasters have invested in the devel-
opment and management of local news/information/enter-
tainment websites. As of December 31, 2002, the Company
had an approximate 24% equity interest in IBS and a 49.9%
equity interest in the IBS/HATV LLC. See Note 3 to the con-
solidated financial statements.

¢ On August 7, 2001 (August 1, 2001, for accounting pur-
poses), the Company contributed its production and distribu-
tion unit to NBC/Hearst-Argyle Syndication, LLC, in
exchange for a 20% equity interest in this entity. NBC/Hearst-
Argyle Syndication, LLC, is a joint venture between NBC
Enterprises and the Company to produce and syndicate first-
run broadcast and original-for-cable programming. See Note 3
to the consolidated financial statements.

* On December 13, 2001, the Company sold WBOY-TV, an
NBC affiliate serving the Clarksburg—Weston, West Virginia
television market for $20 million. This station was. previously
acquired on April 20, 2001, from WBOY-TV, Inc. for $20
million. See Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
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¢ On December 20, 2001, a consolidated subsidiary trust of the
Company completed a private placement of redeemable con-
vertible preferred securities (“Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Securities”) in the amount of $200 million (the
“Trust Preferred Transaction™). Such proceeds were utilized
by the Company to reduce outstanding debt. See Note 9 to
the consolidated financial statements,

¢ During the years 2000 and 2001, the Company directly or
indirectly entered into several strategic agreements with NBC,
including:

{i)  On July 20, 2000, the NBC Television Network and the
Company renewed for an additional ten years an affilia-
tion agreement covering all ten of the NBC-affiliated sta-
tions owned by the Company. The agreement provides
the affiliate stations with the right to rebroadcast pro-
grams transmitted by NBC.

{ii} On December 6, 2000, the Company entered into a pro-
gram development and distribution arrangement with
the NBC Owned and Operated Stations and Gannett
Broadcasting.

(iii) On October 25, 2001, IBS, in which the Company holds
an equity interest of approximately 24%, and the NBC
Television Stations Division (“NBC TVSD”) reached an
agreement wherein IBS would provide website develop-
ment and operating services to the NBC TVSD.

Results of Operations

Results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2002,
include the results of the Company’s 24 television stations
which were owned for the entire period presented, and the man-
agement fees derived by the three television and two radio sta-
tions managed by the Company for the entire period presented.

Results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2001,
include: (i) the results of 23 (which excludes WMUR-TV and
WBOY-TV) of the Company’s television stations which were
owned for the entire period presented; (ii) the management fees
earned by the Company from the three television and two radio
stations managed by the Company for the entire period pre-
sented; (iii) the Time Brokerage Agreement (“TBA”) for
WMUR-TV from January 1 through March 27, 2001; (iv) the
results of WMUR-TV, after its acquisition by the Company,
from March 28 through December 31, 2001; (v) the TBA for
KTAR-AM, KMVP-AM and KKLT-FM (the “Phoenix
Stations”) from January 1 through March 27, 2001; and (vi) the
results of WBOY-TV after its acquisition by the Company, from
April 30 to December 13, 2001, the date of its disposition,



Year Ended December 31, 2002,
Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2001

Total Revenues. Total revenues includes: (i) cash and barter
advertising revenues, net of agency and national representatives’
commissions; (i) network compensation; and (iii) other rev-
enues, which represent less than 4% of total revenues. See
“Revenue Recognition” under Note 2 of the consolidated finan-
cial statements. Total revenues in the year ended December 31,
2002 were $721.3 million, as compared to $641.9 million in the
year ended December 31, 2001, an increase of $79.4 million or
12.4%. This increase was primarily attributable to: (i) an
increase in net political advertising revenues of approximately
$67.6 million; (ii) an increase in the demand for advertising by
national and local advertisers principally in the automotive,
movies, and financial services categories; and (iil) an increase in
net advertising revenues resulting from the carriage of the
Olympics on the Company’s ten owned NBC affiliates during
the first quarter of 2002.

The Company’s net political and Olympic advertising revenues
are likely to continue to be higher in even-numbered years (such
as 2002), when demand for advertising increases as a result of
candidates running for political office and the broadcasting of
the Olympics. During the year ended December 31, 2001, the
Company’s television stations lost expected net advertising rev-
enues of (i) approximately $4.7 million due to the suspension of
advertising-supported commercial programming as a result of
around-the-clock news coverage in the days following the ter-
rorist attacks on September 11, 2001; (if) approximately $7.0
million due to cancellations by advertisers in September 2001;
and (iii) an estimated $10.0 million of net revenues lost in the
fourth quarter of 2001 in the aftermath of September 11th.

Salaries, Benefits and Other Operating Costs. Salaries, benefits
and other operating costs were $331.6 million in the vear ended
December 31, 2002, as compared to $323.5 million in the year
ended December 31, 2001, an increase of $8.1 million or 2.5%.
This increase was primarily due to (i) an increase in commis-
sions and bonuses related to the increase in the Company’s
advertising revenues as discussed above under “Total revenues”;
(li) an increase in insurance costs; and (ili) an increase in
employee benefits and pension expenses.

Amortization of Program Rights. Amortization of program
rights was $60.8 million in the year ended December 31, 2002,
as compared to $57.7 million in the year ended December 31,
2001, an increase of $3.1 million or 5.4%. This increase was
primarily due to new program rights acquisitions at the
Company’s television stations in the Sacramento, California and
the Winston-Salem—Greensboro, North Carolina markets.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization
was $43.6 million in the year ended December 31, 2002, as
compared to $129.4 million in the year ended December 31,
2001, a decrease of $85.8 million or 66.3%. This decrease in
depreciation and amortization expense was primarily due to the
Company’s adoption on January 1, 2002 of the accounting
standard SFAS 142. SFAS 142 requires that goodwill and intan-
gible assets with indefinite useful lives (FCC licenses) no longer

be amortized, but instead be assessed for impairment at least
annually by applying a fair value-based test. See Note 4 of the
consolidated financial statements. Depreciation expense was
$41.1 million in the year ended December 31, 2002, as com-
pared to $40.7 million in the year ended December 31, 2001, an
increase of $0.4 million or 1.0%.

Corporate, General and Administrative Expenses. Corporate,
general and administrative expenses were $19.7 million in the
year ended December 31, 2002, as compared to $15.8 million
in the year ended December 31, 2001, an increase of $3.9 mil-
lion or 24.7%. This increase was primarily due to: (i) an
increase in director and officer liability insurance premiums; (ii}
an increase in incentive compensation expense, which was sig-
nificantly lower in 2001 as a result of the adverse effect upon
the Company’s financial performance from the events of
September 11th and the downturn in the U.S. economy; and {iii)
an increase in professional fees.

Operating Income. Operating income was $265.6 million in the
year ended December 31, 2002, as compared to $115.4 million
in the year ended December 31, 2001, an increase of $150.2
million or 130.2%. This net increase in operating income was
due to the items discussed above.

Interest Expense, Net. Interest expense, net of interest income,
was $73.4 million in the year ended December 31, 2002, as com-
pared to $98.7 million in the year ended December 31, 2001, a
decrease of $25.3 million or 25.6%. This decrease was primarily
due to a lower outstanding debt balance inthe year ended
December 31, 2002, as compared to the same period in 2001.
The Company’s long-term debt balance as of December 31, 2002
was approximately $0.97 billion, as compared to approximately
$1.16 billion as of December 31, 2001. Interest expense, net,
included approximately $0.7 million of interest income in the
year ended December 31, 2002 and approximately $0.6 million
in the year ended December 31, 2001. See Note 6 of the consol-
idated financial statements. In connection with the Company’s
adoption of SFAS 145 on July 1, 2002, the Company has reclas-
sified certain amounts reported in prior periods that were previ-
ously reported as extraordinary items, net of related income
taxes, as Interest expense, net, in the consolidated statements of
income. Accordingly, the Company has reclassified approxi-
mately $0.9 million to Interest expense, net in the year ended
December 31, 2001.

Dividends on Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities.
Dividends on Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities were
$15 million in the year ended December 31, 2002, as compared
to $0.5 million in the year ended December 31, 2001. The divi-
dends are accrued quarterly in the amount of $3.75 million in
connection with the private placement of Redeemable
Convertible Preferred Securities in the amount of $200.0 million
by a consolidated subsidiary trust of the Company in December
2001. The dividend payments are tax-deductible by the
Company. The net proceeds of $194.8 million (after payment of
issuance costs of $5.2 million) from the private placement were
utilized by the Company to reduce outstanding borrowings
under its credit facility.
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Other (Income) Expense, Net. Other (income) expense, net, was
income of $0.3 million in the year ended December 31, 2002, as
compared to income, net, of $48.8 million in the year ended
December 31, 2001, Other (income) expense, net, recorded in
the year ended December 31, 2002, represented an escrow clos-
ing fee paid to the Company by Emmis in connection with the
Phoenix/WMUR Swap transaction, which occurred in March
2001. Other (income) expense, net, recorded in the year ended
December 31, 2001 represented a $72.6 million gain from the
sale of the Phoenix Stations, which was partially offset by write-
downs of $5.1 million and $18.8 million of the carrying value
of the Company’s investments in Geocast and ProAct, respec-
tively. See Note 3 of the consolidated financial statements.

Equity in Loss of Affiliates. Equity in loss of affiliates was
$3.3 million in the year ended December 31, 2002, as com-
pared to $6.5 million in the year ended December 31, 2001, a
decrease of $3.2 million or 49.2%. See Note 3 of the consoli-
dated financial statements. This decrease was primarily due to
the improved operating results of Interner Broadcasting
Systems, Inc. (“IBS”). The Company’s share in the financial
results of IBS entities was a net loss of approximately $1.4
million in the year ended December 31, 2002, as compared to
a net loss of approximately $5.8 million in the year ended
December 31, 2001. The Company’s share in the financial
results of NBC/HATV Syndication LLC was a net loss of
approximately $1.9 million in the year ended December 31,
2002, as compared to a net loss of approximately $0.7 million
in the year ended December 31, 2001.

Income Taxes. Income tax expense was $66.2 million in the
year ended December 31, 2002, as compared to $27.4 million
in the year ended December 31, 2001, an increase of $38.8 mil-
lion or 141.6%. This increase was primarily due to the increase
in income attributable to the items described above and par-
tially offset by a lower effective tax rate in the year ended
December 31, 2002. The effective tax rate was 38.0% in the
year ended December 31, 2002, as compared to 47.0% in the
year ended December 31, 2001. This decrease in the effective
tax rate was primarily attributable to the Company’s adoption
of SFAS 142, which discontinues the amortization of goodwill
and certain other intangible assets. See Note 4 of the consoli-
dated financial statements. Income tax expense represents fed-
eral and state income taxes as calculated on the Company’s
income before income taxes.

Net Income. Net income was $108.0 million in the year ended
December 31, 2002, as compared to $31.1 million in the year
ended December 31, 2001, an increase of $76.9 million or
247.3%. This increase was due to the items discussed above,
primarily (i) an increase of $150.2 million in Operating
income and (ii) a decrease of $25.3 million in Interest expense,
net, partially offset by (iii) an increase of $14.5 million in div-
idends on Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities and
{(iv) a $48.5 million decrease in Other (income) expense, net,
in the year ended December 31, 2002, as compared to the vear
ended December 31, 2001.
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Year Ended December 31, 2001,
Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2000

Total Revenues. Total revenues includes (1) cash and barter
advertising revenues, net of agency and national representatives’
commissions, (ii) network compensation and (iii) other rev-
enues, which represent less than 4% of total revenues. See
“Revenue Recognition” under Note 2 of the consolidated finan-
cial statements. Total revenues in the vear ended December 31,
2001 were $641.9 million, as compared to $747.3 million in the
year ended December 31, 2000, a decrease of $105.4 million or
14.1%. This decrease was primarily attributable to (i) the nega-
tive effects of the economic recession in the United States during
the year 2001 on total advertising expenditures, particularly
impacting categories such as automotive, Internet, telecommu-
nications, consumer products, financial institutions and fast
foods in the year ended December 31, 2001; (ii) a decrease in
net political advertising revenues of approximately $44.5 mil-
lion in the year ended December 31, 2001, due to the absence of
Congressional elections in that year; (iii) the absence in the year
ended December 31, 2001 of incremental advertising revenues
resulting from the broadcast of the Summer Olympics in
Sydney, Australia on the Company’s ten owned NBC affiliates
in the year ended December 31, 2000; (iv) the absence in the
vear ended December 31, 2001 of incremental advertising rev-
enues resulting from the broadcast of the Super Bowl on the
Company’s ten owned ABC affiliates in the year ended
December 31, 2000; (v) the loss of approximately $4.7 million
in expected advertising revenues during the week of September
11, 2001 due to the suspension of advertising-supported com-
mercial programming as a result of around-the-clock news cov-
erage; (vi) the loss of approximately $7.0 million in expected
advertising revenues in September of 2001 due to advertiser
cancellations; and (vii) an estimated $10.0 million of net rev-
enues fost in the fourth quarter of 2001 in the aftermath of
September 11th.

Salaries, Benefits and Other Operating Costs. Salaries, benefits
and other operating costs in the year ended December 31, 2001
were $323.5 million, as compared to $3235.7 million in the year
ended December 31, 2000, a decrease of $2.2 million or 0.7%.
This decrease was primarily attributable to cost savings initia-
tives implemented in 2001, partially offset by (i) a net increase
of approximately $3.5 million in the allowance for doubtful
accounts and (ii) approximately $0.5 million of incremental
costs associated with the coverage of the events in New York,
Washington, D.C. and Pennsylvania during the week of
September 11, 2001.

Amortization of Program Rights. Amortization of program
rights in the year ended December 31, 2001 was $57.7 million,
as compared to $58.5 million in the year ended December 31,
2000, a decrease of $0.8 million or 1.4%.



Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization
of intangible assets was $129.4 million in the year ended
December 31, 2001, as compared to $125.2 million in the year
ended December 31, 2000, an increase of $4.2 million or 3.4%.
This increase was primarily attributable to (i) increased capital
expenditures in 2001 and 2000 related to digital conversions
and (ii) increased amortization expense from the exchange of
the Phoenix Stations for WMUR and the acquisition of WBOY.
See “Significant Business Transactions™ above.

Corporate, General and Administrative Expenses. Corporate,
general and administrative expenses were $15.8 million in the
year ended December 31, 2001, as compared to $17.3 million
in the vear ended December 31, 2000, a decrease of $1.5 mil-
lion or 8.7%. This decrease was primarily attributable to cost
savings initiatives implemented in 2001 and a decrease in incen-
tive compensation expense due to the Company’s lower operat-
ing results in 2001 as compared to 2000.

Special Charge. The Company recorded a special charge of
$15.4 million in the year ended December 31, 2000. This spe-
cial charge represented a one-time charge resulting from the cost
of the Company’s Incentive Retirement Program. See Note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Operating Income. Operating income was $115.4 million in the
year ended December 31, 2001, as compared to $205.2 million
in the year ended December 31, 2000, a decrease of $89.8 mil-
lion or 43.8%. This net decrease in operating income was due
to the items discussed above.

Interest Expense, Net. Interest expense, net, was $98.7 millicn
in the year ended December 31, 2001, as compared to $112.1
million in the year ended December 31, 2000, a decrease of
$13.4 million or 12.0%. This decrease was primarily attributa-
ble to (i) a lower average outstanding debt balance in the year
2001 than in the year 2000; (ii} a decrease in interest rates,
which impacted the variable rate portion of the Company’s
credit facility, partially offset by (iii) the write-off of approxi-
mately $1.3 million of unamortized deferred financing costs
associated with management’s election not to renew the $250
Million Facility on April 10, 2000. See Note 6 to the consoli-
dated financial statements. In connection with the Company’s
adoption of SFAS 145 on July 1, 2002, the Company has reclas-
sified certain amounts reported in prior periods that were previ-
ously reported as extraordinary items, net of related income
taxes, as Interest expense, net, in the consolidated statements of
income. Accordingly, the Company has reclassified approxi-
mately $0.9 million and $4.1 million to Interest expense, net, in
the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Dividends on Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities.
Dividends on Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities
were $0.5 million in the year ended December 31, 2001, as
compared to none in the year ended December 31, 2000. The
dividends are accrued quarterly in the amount of $3.75 million
in connection with the private placement of Redeemable
Convertible Preferred Securities in the amount of $200.0 mil-
lion by a consolidated subsidiary trust of the Company in
December 2001. The dividend payments are tax-deductible by

the Company. The net proceeds of $194.8 million (after payment
of issuance of $5.2 million) from the private placement were uti-
lized by the Company to reduce outstanding borrowings under
its credit facility.

Other (Income} Expense, Net. In the year ended December 31,
2001, the Company recorded a $72.6 million gain from the sale
of the Phoenix Stations, which was partially offset by a $5.1
million and $18.8 million write-down of the carrying value of
the Company’s investments in Geocast Network Systems, Inc.
{“Geocast”) and ProAct Technologies Corporation (“ProAct”),
respectively. In the year ended December 31, 2000, the
Company recorded a $4.2 million write-down of the carrying
value of the Company’s investment in Geocast, which was par-
tially offset by a $1.1 million gain from the sale of WXII-AM
and WLKY-AM.

Equity in Loss of Affiliates. The Company recorded equity losses
of affiliates of $6.5 million in the year ended December 31, 2001,
as compared to $6.2 million in the year ended December 31,
2000, an increase of $0.3 million or 4.8%. See Note 3 of the con-
solidated financial statements. The Company’s share in the finan-
cial results of IBS entities was a net loss of approximately $5.8
million in the year ended December 31, 2001, as compared to a
net loss of approximately $6.2 million in the year ended
December 31, 2000. The Company’s share in the financial results
of NBC/HATV Syndication LLC was a net loss of approximately
$0.7 million in the year ended December 31, 2001.

Income Taxes. Income tax expense was $27.4 million in the
year ended December 31, 2001, as compared to $38.1 million
in the year ended December 31, 2000, a decrease of $10.7
million or 28.1%. The effective tax rate was 47% for the year
ended December 31, 2001, as compared to 46.2% for the year
ended December 31, 2000. This represents federal and state
income taxes as calculated on the Company’s net income
before income taxes.

Net Income. Net income was $31.1 million in the year ended
December 31, 2001, as compared to net income of $44.9 mil-
lion in the year ended December 31, 2000, a decrease of $13.8
million or 30.7%. This decrease in net income was attributable
to the items discussed above.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities was approximately
$205.5 million, $165.9 million and $189.3 million in the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The
increase of net cash provided by operating activities of $39.6
million in the year ended December 31, 2002, as compared to -
the year ended December 31, 2001, was primarily due to the
increase in the Company’s revenues and net income, as discussed
above under “Total revenues,” and “Net income.” The decrease
of cash provided by operating activities of $23.4 million in the
year ended December 31, 2001, as compared to the year ended
December 31, 2000, was primarily due to the decrease in the
Company’s revenues and net income, as discussed above under
“Total revenues,” and “Net income.”
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Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was approximately $25.9
million, $73.0 million and $62.2 million in the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. This
decrease in net cash used in investing activities in the year
ended December 31, 2002, as compared to the years ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000, was primarily due to the invest-
ments made in years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, in
connection with the business transactions discussed below.

In February 2000, the Company invested $8 million in Geocast
Network Systems, Inc. {“Geocast”), bringing the Company’s
total to $10 million for an equity interest in Geocast. In March
2000, the Company invested $25 million in ProAct
Technologies Corporation (“ProAct”) for an equity interest in
ProAct. In May 2001, the Company invested $6 million in
Internet Broadcasting Systems, Inc. (“IBS”), bringing the
Company’s total investment to $26 million for an equity interest
in IBS. These equity investments were primarily funded by net
cash provided by operating activities and through the
Company’s Credit Facility. See Note 3 to the consolidated finan-
cial statements for subsequent adjustments to the carrying value
of these investments. See Note 6 of the consolidated financial
statements.

In August 2001, the Company contributed its production and
distribution unit to NBC/Hearst-Argyle Syndication, LLC, a
limited liability company formed by NBC Enterprises and the
Company to produce and syndicate first-run broadcast and
original-for-cable programming. See Note 3 of the consolidated
financial statements.

On March 28, 2001, the Company exchanged its radio stations
in Phoenix, Arizona (KTAR-AM, KMVP-AM and KKLT-FM)
(the “Phoenix Stations™) for WMUR-TV, the ABC affiliate serv-
ing Manchester, New Hampshire, which is part of the Boston,
Massachusetts television market, in a three-party swap (the
“Phoenix/WMUR Swap”). The Company sold the Phoenix
Stations to Emmis Communications Corporation (“Emmis”) for
$160 million, less transaction expenses, and purchased WMUR-
TV from WMUR-TV, Inc. for $1835 million, plus a working cap-
ital adjustment of $3.5 million and transaction expenses. The
purchase price of WMUR-TV was funded through an interme-
diary by approximately (i) $160 million from Emmis and (ii)
$28.5 million plus the cost of the transaction expenses from the
Company’s Credit Facility. See Notes 3 and 6 of the consoli-
dated financial statements.

On April 30, 2001, pursuant to an Asset Purchase Agreement
entered into with WBOY-TV, Inc., the Company acquired
WBOY-TV, the NBC affiliate serving the Clarksburg—Weston,
West Virginia television market for $20 million (the “WBOY
Acquisition”), plus a working capital adjustment of $0.7 million
and transaction expenses. On December 13, 2001, the Company
subsequently sold WBOY-TV for approximately $20 million.
The original purchase price and the eventual sales proceeds were
funded and repaid using the Company’s Credit Facility. See
Notes 3 and 6 of the consolidated financial statements.

HEARST-ARGYLE TELEVISION

Capital expenditures were $25.9 million, $32.3 million, and $32.0
million in the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively, and were funded using the Company’s net cash
provided by operating activities and through the Company’s
Credit Facility. In the year ended December 31, 2002, the
Company invested approximately (i) $15.4 million in digital
conversions; (if) $5.4 million in maintenance projects; and (iii)
$5.1 million in special projects. In the year ended December 31,
2001, the Company invested approximately (i) $18.6 million in
digital conversions; (ii) $9.9 million in maintenance projects;
and (iii) $3.8 million in special projects. In the year ended
December 31, 2000, the Company invested approximately (i)
$6.5 million in digital conversions; (ii) $22.4 million in mainte-
nance projects; and (iii) $3.1 million in special projects. For the
year ending December 31, 2003, the Company expects to spend
approximately $30.0 million in capital expenditures, including
approximately (i) $5.0 million in digital projects; (ii) $15.0 mil-
lion in maintenance projects; and (iii) $10.0 million in special
projects. From 1997 through December 31, 2002, the
Company has invested approximately $54.8 million in capital
expenditures related to digiral conversions, as mandated by the
Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”). The Company
anticipates that it will make additional investments of approxi-
mately $15.0 to $18.0 million by December 31, 2004 in order
to complete digital conversions for all of its stations, including
satellite stations.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities was approximately $178.3
million, $95.4 million and $127.0 million in the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The
Company used cash provided by operating activities to pay
down the credit facility in the net amount of $184.0 million in
the year ended December 31, 2002, as compared to $76.2 mil-
lion in the year ended December 31, 2001. The increase in net
cash used in financing activities of $82.9 in the year ended
December 31, 2002, as compared to the year ended December 31,
2001 was primarily due to a net increase in pay-downs to the
Credit Facility; from net cash provided by operating activities of
approximately $107.8 million in 2002 as compared to 2001;
and an increase in proceeds from stock option exercises of
approximately $7.9 million. This increase was partially offset
by the fact that in 2001 the Company used net cash of $4.1 mil-
lion and $15.4 million for Series A Common Stock repurchases
and repayments on the Company’s Senior Notes, respectively.
The decrease in net cash used in financing activities of $31.6
million in the year ended December 31, 2001, as compared to
the year ended December 31, 2000 was, primarily due to
decreases in net cash used of $14.4 million and $29.0 million
for Series A Common Stock repurchases and repayments on the
Company’s Senior Notes, respectively, in the years ended
December 31, 2001, as compared to 2000.



Long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the net decreases to long-term debt in the year ended December 31,

2002 were as follows:

Private Senior Capital
Credit Senior Placement  Subordinated Lease
{In thousands) Facility Notes Debt Notes Obligations Total
Balance December 31, 2001 $275,000 $432,110  $450,000 $2,59 $ 389 $1,160,095
Decreases:
Net pay-down with cash flow from operating activities (184,000) — — (2,596) — (186,596)
Reclassification to current portion — — — — (121) (121)
Balance December 31, 2002 $ 91,000 $432,110 $450,000 $ — $ 268 $ 973,378

The Company’s debt obligations contain certain financial and
other covenants and restrictions on the Company. Certain of the
financial covenants include credit ratios such as leverage, inter-
est coverage and fixed charges coverage, but such covenants do
not include any-triggers explicitly tied to the Company’s credit
ratings or stock price. The Company is in compliance with all
such covenants and restrictions as of December 31, 2002. As of
December 31, 2002, the Company’s long-term debt obligations
were approximately $973.4 million, of which approximately
91% matures after 2005. See Note 6 of the consolidated finan-
cial statements. Of the Company’s long-term debt obligations as
of December 31, 2002, approximately 91% bear interest at a
fixed rate and approximately 9% bear interest at a variable
rate. The Company’s credit ratings for its long-term debt obliga-
tions, respectively, were BBB- by Standard & Poor’s and Baa3
by Moody’s Investors Service, as of December 31, 2002. Such
credit ratings are considered to be investment grade.

On April 12, 1999, the Company retired its existing $1 billion
revolving credit facility and replaced it with two new revolving
credit facilities (the “New Credit Facilities”) with a consortium
of banks led by JP Morgan Chase Bank, Bank of New York,
Toronto Dominion and Bank of Montreal. The New Credit
Facilities were structured as a $1 billion revolver (the “$1
Billion Facility”) and a $250 million revolver/term loan (the
“$250 Million Facility”). Management elected to cancel the
$250 Million Facility on April 10, 2000. On August 13, 2001,
the Company exercised its contractual right to reduce the lender
commitments of the $1 Billion Facility to $750 million (here-
after, the “Credit Facility”). The Credit Facility, which had an
outstanding balance of $91.0 million and $275.0 million at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, will mature on April
12, 2004. Management intends to renew the Company’s exist-
ing Credit Facility or enter into a new facility and is currently
evaluating its options.

During 2000, the Company repaid (i) $28.0 million of its 7.5%
Senior Notes due November 15, 2027, at a discounted price of
$24.8 million, and (ii) $22.7 million of its 7.0% Senior Notes
due January 15, 2018, at a discounted price of $19.6 million.
These repayments were funded by the Company’s existing credit
facility. The Company wrote-off the pro-rata share of deferred
financing fees related to the Senior Notes which were repaid.
See Note 6 of the consolidated financial statements. The dis-
counts from the repayments, net of the write-off of the deferred
financing fees, resulted in a gain of approximately $4.1 million,
before income tax expense, which was reclassified as Interest

expense, net, in the accompanying consolidated statement of
income in the year ended December 31, 2000, in accordance
with SFAS 145. See Note 2 under “New Accounting
Pronouncements” of the consolidated financial statements.

On December 20, 2001, a consolidated subsidiary trust of the
Company completed a private placement of redeemable con-
vertible preferred securities (“Redeemable Convertible Preferred
Securities”) in the amount of $200.0 million (the “Trust
Preferred Transaction”). The net proceeds from the private
placement were approximately $194.8 million, net of approxi-
mately $5.2 million of issuance costs. The net proceeds were
utilized by the Company to reduce outstanding borrowings
under the Credit Facility, thereby reducing the Company’s over-
all debt leverage ratio and future interest expense. See Notes 6
and 9 of the consolidated financial statements.

During 2001, the Company repaid (i) $1.3 million of its 7.0%
Senior Notes due January 15, 2018, at a discounted price of
$1.1 million, and (ii) $15.9 million of its 7.5% Senior Notes
due November 15, 2027, at a discounted price of $14.3 million.
These repayments were funded by the Credit Facility. The
Company wrote-off the pro-rata share of deferred financing fees
related to the Senior Notes which were repaid. The discounts
from the repayments, net of the write-off of the deferred financ-
ing fees, resulted in a gain of approximately $0.9 million, before
income tax expense, which was reclassified as a reduction to
Interest expense, net, in the accompanying consolidated state-
ment of income for the year ended December 31, 2001, in
accordance with SFAS 145. See Note 2 under “New Accounting
Pronouncements” of the consolidated financial statements.

On July 29, 2002, a holder of the Company’s Series A Preferred
Stock, exercised their right to convert 1,657 shares of Series A
Preferred Stock into 79,959 shares of the Company’s Series A
Common Stock. As of December 31, 2002, the Company had
9,281 shares outstanding of Series A Preferred Stock and
10,938 shares outstanding of Series B Preferred Stock.

On July 31, 2002, the Company redeemed its remaining out-
standing Senior Subordinated Notes in the principal amount of
approximately $2.6 million. The Senior Subordinated Notes
were due in 2005 and bore interest at 9.75% semi-annually. In
connection with the redemption, the Company paid a premium
of approximately $84,000, which has been included in Interest
expense, net, in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income in the year ended December 31, 2002. The redemption
was funded using net cash provided by operating activities.

HEARST-ARGYLE TELEVISION
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

of Financial Condition and Results of Operations «ontinves

The following table summarizes the Company’ future cash obligations as of December 31, 2002 under existing debt repayment
schedules, noncancelable leases, future payments for program rights, employment and talent contracts and Redeemable Convertible

Preferred Securities.

(In thousands) 2003 2004 - 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter Total
Long-term debt(1) $ —  $ 91,000 $ — $ 90,000 $215,000 $577,110 $ 973,110
Net noncancelable operating lease obligations 5,821 4,262 4,040 2,770 2,417 6,599 25,909
Program rights 64,652 54,093 45,392 23,713 6,492 6,659 201,001
Employee talent contracts 54,669 31,317 13,935 5,283 2,371 809 108,384
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities — — — — —_ 200,000 200,000
$125,142  $180,672 $63,367 $121,766  $226,280 §791,177  $1,508,404

(1) Excludes capital lease obligations

The above information does not include any dividend obliga-
tion for the Company’s Series A and Series B Preferred Stock.
See Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company anticipates that its primary sources of cash,
which include current cash balances, net cash provided by oper-
ating activities and amounts available under the existing Credit
Facility, will be sufficient to finance the operating and working
capital requirements of its stations, the Company’s debt service
requirements, anticipated capital expenditures and other obliga-
tions of the Company for both the next 12 months and the fore-
seeable future thereafter. Management intends to renew the
Company’s existing Credit Facility or enter into a new facility
and is currently evaluating its options.

Impact of Inflation ‘

The impact of inflation on the Company’s operations has not
been significant to date. There can be no assurance, however,
that a high rate of inflation in the future would not have an
adverse impact on the Company’s operating results.

Forward-Looking Statements

This report includes or incorporates forward-looking statements,
The Company has based these forward-looking statements on the
Company’s current expectations and projections about future
events. The forward-looking statements contained in this report
concerning, among other things, trends involving net revenues,
cash flow and operating expenses, involve risks and uncertainties
and are subject to change based on various important factors,
including the impact of changes in national and regional
economies, the Company’s ability to service and refinance its
outstanding debt, successful integration of acquired television
stations (including achievement of synergies and cost reduc-
tions), pricing fluctuations in local and national advertising,
future regulatory actions and conditions in the television stations’
operating areas, competition from others in the broadcast televi-
sion markets served by the Company, volatility in programming
costs, the effects of governmental regulation of broadcasting,
industry consolidation, technological developments and major
world news events. Other matters set forth in this report or in
the documents incorporated herein by reference may also cause
actual results in the future to differ materially from those
described in the forward-looking statements. The Company
undertakes no obligation to update or revise any forward-look-
ing statements, whether as a result of new information, future
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events or otherwise. In light of these risks, uncertainties and
assumptions, the forward-looking events discussed in this report
might not occur.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations (“SFAS 143”), which is effective
January 1, 2003. SFAS 143 requires the recording of the fair
value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in the
period in which it is incurred. The Company does not believe
that the adoption of this statement will have a material effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 144, which was effective
January 1, 2002. SFAS 144 supersedes existing accounting liter-
ature dealing with impairment and disposal of long-lived assets,
including discontinued operations. The Company does not
believe that the adoption of this statement will have a material
effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
However, if in the future, the Company were to sell or other-
wise dispose any of its broadcast operating units, under SFAS
144, such disposal may be required to be reported as a discon-
tinued operation.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, Rescission of
FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections (“SFAS 145”).
Among other matters, SFAS 1435 rescinds FASB Statement No. 4,
Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt,
thereby eliminating the requirement that gains and losses from
the extinguishment of debt be aggregated and, if material, clas-
sified as an extraordinary item, net of the related income tax
effect. The Company adopted SFAS 145 on July 1, 2002. As a
result of the adoption of SFAS 1435, the Company accounts for
the impact of the early extinguishment of debt as a component
of Interest expense, net, in the accompanying consolidated state-
ments of income. In accordance with SFAS 145, the Company
has reclassified certain amounts reported in prior periods that
were previously classified as extraordinary items, net of related
income taxes. Such reclassifications had no effect upon the
Company’s reported net income, but resulted in a decrease of
approximately $0.9 million and $4.1 million to reported inter-
est expense, net, in the years ended December 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively.



In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities (“SFAS 1467},
which is effective January 1, 2003. This statement addresses
financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit
or disposal activities and nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force
(EITF) Issue No. 94-3, Liability Recognition for Certain
Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an
Activity (Including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).
The Company does not believe that the adoption of this state-
ment will have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45,
Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of
Others (“FIN 45”). FIN 45 elaborates on the disclosures to be
made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements
about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued.
FIN 435 requires a guarantor to recognize, at the inception of a
guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligations under-
taken in issuing the guarantee. The disclosure provisions of FIN 45
are effective for financial statements of periods ending after
December 15, 2002. The Company has adopted the disclosure
provision. See Note 15 of the consolidated financial statements.

Additionally, the recognition of a guarantor’s obligation should
be applied on a prospective basis to guarantees issued after
December 31, 2002. The Company does not believe that the
recognition provisions of FIN 45 will have a material effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure
(“SFAS 1487). SFAS 148 amends SFAS 123 to provide alterna-
tive methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair
value-based method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation. The Black-Scholes option-pricing model is com-
monly used in the fair value-based method. In addition, SFAS
148 amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS 123 to require
prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial
statements about the method of accounting for stock-based
employee compensation and the effect of the method used in
reported results. The provisions of SFAS 148 are effective for
financial statements for fiscal years and interim periods ending
after December 15, 2002. The disclosure provisions of SFAS
148 have been adopted by the Company. SFAS 148 did not
require the Company to change to the fair value-based method
of accounting for stock-based compensation. See Note 2 of the
consolidated financial statements. :

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The Company has long-term debt obligations as of December 31, 2002 that are sensitive to changes in interest rates. See Notes 2 and
6 to the consolidated financial statements. The following table presents the fair value of long-term debt obligations (excluding capi-
tal lease obligations) as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the future cash flows by expected maturity dates based upon out-

standing principal balances as of December 31, 2002. See Note 17 of the consolidated financial statements.

December 31, 2002

December 31, 2001

Expected Maturity Fair Carrying Fair
(In thousands) 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007  Thereafter  Total Value Value Value
Long-term debt:
Variable rate:
Credit Facility $— $91,000 $— S — S — 8 — § 91,000 $ 91,025 $275,000 $274,343
Fixed rate:
Senior Notes §— 8 — $5— 3 — $125,000 $307,110 S$432,110 $435,835 $432,110 $397,206
Senior Subordinated Notes $— S — $—  $ — 8 — 8 — 8 — 8 — $ 2956 $ 2,718
Private Placement Debt $— § — $— $90,000 $ 90,000 $270,000 $450,000 $461,861 $450,000 $453,613
Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Securitiestl) $— S — S— 8 — S — $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000

(1) The Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities have an underlying 7.5% fixed rate dividend requirement. See Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s annualized weighted average interest rate for
variable-rate long-term debt for the years ended December 31,
2002 and 2001 is 4.1% and 5.3%, respectively. The annualized
weighted average interest rate for fixed-rate long-term debt is
7.2% for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001.

The Company’s debt obligations contain certain financial and
other covenants and restrictions on the Company. Such
covenants and restrictions do not include any triggers of default
related to the Company’s overall credit rating or stock prices.
As of December 31, 2002, the Company is in compliance with
all such covenants and restrictions.

The Credit Facility does provide, however, that all ourstanding
balances will become due and payable at such time as Hearst’s
{and certain of its affiliates’) equity ownership in the Company
becomes less than 35% of the total equity of the Company and
Hearst and such affiliates no longer have the right to elect a
majority of the members of the Company’s Board of Directors.

The Company’s Credit Facility is sensitive to interest rates. As
of December 31, 2002, the Company is not involved in any
derivative financial instruments. However, the Company may
consider certain interest rate risk strategies in the future.

HEARST-ARGYLE TELEVISION



Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of
Hearst-Argyle Television, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
of Hearst-Argyle Television, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the
related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2002. These consolidated financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsi-
bility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing stan-
dards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclo-
sures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assess-
ing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

HEARST-ARGYLE TELEVISION

Deloitte
& Touche

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company at December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of irs
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2002 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
effective January 1, 2002, the Company changed its method of
accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets to conform
to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142.

b//éda_% aaehe LLP

New York, New York
February 6, 2003



Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31,

(In thousands, except share data) 2002 2001
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,442 $ 3,260
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of
$4,702 and $7,355 in 2002 and 2001, respectively 143,347 142,146
Program and barter rights 58,510 54,917
Deferred income taxes 2,873 3,733
Other 7,024 5,891
Total current assets 216,196 209,947
Property, plant and equipment:
Land, building and improvements 144,597 142,890
Broadcasting equipment 321,650 299,889
Office furniture, equipment and other 36,419 37,518
Construction in progress 6,600 10,367
509,266 490,664
Less accumulated depreciation (199,128) (162,407)
Property, plant and equipment, net 310,138 328,257
Intangible assets, net 2,354,658 2,357,117
Goodwill, net 799,160 799,527

3,153,818 3,156,644

Other assets:
Deferred financing costs, net of accumulated amortization of $17,767 and

$14,814 in 2002 and 2001, respectively 17,306 20,259
Investments 26,925 30,308
Program and barter rights, noncurrent 6,096 3,272
Other 32,446 31,018

Total other assets 82,773 84,857

Total assets $3,762,925 $3,779,705

(continued)
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Consolidated Balance Sheets «continve

December 31,

(In thousands, except share data) 2002 2001
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 14,085 § 14,375
Accrued liabilities 54,127 59,565
Program and barter rights payable 57,672 53,930
Payable to The Hearst Corporation 533 2,612
Other 4,262 3,768
Total current liabilities 130,679 134,250
Program and barter rights payable, noncurrent 8,723 5,045
Long-term debt 973,378 1,160,095
Deferred income taxes 844,781 792,327
Other liabilities 26,102 21,374
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,852,984 1,978,841
Company Obligated Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities of Subsidiary
Trust Holding Solely Parent Company Debentures 200,000 200,000
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Series A Preferred Stock, 10,938 shares issued in 2002 and 2001 and
9,281 and 10,938 shares outstanding in 2002 and 2001, respectively
(aggregate liquidation preference of $9,281) 1 1
Series B Preferred Stock, 10,938 shares issued and outstanding in 2002 and 2001
{aggregate liquidation preference of $10,938) 1 1
Series A Common Stock, par value $.01 per share, 200,000,000 shares authorized
in 2002 and 2001, and 54,262,791 and 53,726,060 shares issued and
outstanding in 2001 and 2000, respectively 543 537
Series B Common Stock, par value $.01 per share, 100,000,000 shares authorized i
in 2002 and 2001 and 41,298,648 shares issued and outstanding in 2002 and 2001 413 413
Additional paid-in capital 1,281,288 1,270,908
Retained earnings 382,093 275,453
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss), net of tax benefit of $2,919 (4,378) —
Treasury stock, at cost, 3,197,152 shares of Series A Common Stock in 2002 and 2001 (80,699) (80,699)
Total stockholders’ equity 1,579,262 1,466,614
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $3,762,925 $3,779,705

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Income

Years Ended December 31,

(In thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001 2000
Total revenues $721,311 $641,876 $747,281
Station operating expenses:

Salaries, benefits and other operating costs 331,643 323,520 325,736

Amortization of program rights 60,821 57,676 58,460

Depreciation and amortization 43,566 129,420 125,207
Corporate, general and administrative expenses 19,650 15,817 17,281
Special charge — — 15,362
Operating income 265,631 115,443 205,235
Interest expense, net 73,443 98,725 112,086
Dividends on Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities 15,000 500 —
Other (income) expense, net (299) (48,778) 3,930
Equity in loss of affiliates 3,269 6,461 6,234
Income before income taxes 174,218 58,535 82,985
Income taxes 66,201 27,448 38,060
Net income 108,017 31,087 44925
Less preferred stock dividends (1,377) (1,422) (1,422)
Income applicable to common stockholders $106,640 $ 29,665 $ 43,503
Income per common share—basic: $ 1.6 $ 032 § 047
Number of common shares used in the calculation 92,148 91,809 92,433
Income per common share—diluted: $ 115 - $  0.32 $ 047
Number of common shares used in the calculation 92,550 92,000 92,457

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity

Accumulated
Additional Other
Preferred  Paid-In ~ Retained Comprehensive Treasury

(In thousands, except share data) Series A Series B Stock Capital  Earnings (Loss} Stock Total
Balances—January 1, 2000 $535  $413 §2  $1,271,666 $202,285 $ — $(58,110) $1,416,791
Net income — — — — 44,925 — — 44925
Dividends paid on preferred stock — — — — (1,422) " — — (1,422)
Employee stock purchase plan proceeds 1 — — 2,253 — — — 2,254
Stock options exercised — — — 138 —_ — — 138
Tax benefit from stock plans — — — 200 — — — 200
Treasury stock purchased—Series A

Common Stock (960,100 shares) —_ — — — — — (18,510) (18,510)
Balances—December 31, 2000 536 413 2 1,274,257 245,788 — (76,620) 1,444,376
Net income — — — — 31,087 — — 31,087
Issuance costs—Convertible

Preferred Securities — —_ — (5,175) — — — {5,175)
Dividends paid on preferred stock — —_ —_ — {1,422) — — (1,422)
Employee stock purchase plan proceeds 1 — — 1,639 — — — 1,640
Stock options exercised — — — 112 — - — 112
Tax benefit from stock plans — — — 75 — — — 75
Treasury stock purchased—Series A

Common Stock (200,037 shares) — — —_ — — — (4,079) {4,079)
Balances—December 31, 2001 537 413 2 1,270,908 275,453 — (80,699) 1,466,614
Net income — — — — 108,017 — — 108,017
Dividends paid on preferred stock — — — — (1,377) — — (1,377)
Redemption of Series A Preferred Stock 1 — — (1) — — — —
Employee stock purchase plan proceeds 1 — — 1,588 — — — 1,589
Stock options exercised 4 — — 8,038 — — — 8,042
Tax benefit from stock plans — — — 755 — — — 755
Additional minimum pension liability,

net of tax benefit of $2,919 — — — — — (4,378) — (4,378)
Balances—December 31, 2002 §543 §413 §2 $1,281,288 $382,093 $(4,378) $(80,699) $1,579,262

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands)

Years Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000

Operating Activities
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

$108,017 $ 31,087 $ 44,925

Depreciation 41,107 40,727 38,452
Amortization of intangible assets 2,459 88,693 86,755
Amortization of deferred financing costs - 2,953 2,938 4,401
Amortization of program rights 60,821 57,676 58,460
Program payments (59,870) (57,385) (58,797)
Deferred income taxes 51,733 12,921 (7,944)
Equity in loss of affiliates 3,269 6,461 6,234
Other (income) expense, net — (48,778) 3,930
Provision for doubtful accounts 3,864 5,702 2,852
Gain on early retirement of debt — (873) (4,077)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 2,318 — —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (5,065) 18,874 (6,907)
Other assets (1,851) 578 13,195
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (12) 4,649 12,778
Other liabilities (4,291) 2,583 (4,946)
Net cash provided by operating activities 205,452 165,853 189,311
Investing Activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment:
Digital (15,410) (18,658) (6,495)
Maintenance (5,371) (9,862) (22,449)
Special projects/towers (5,139) (3,811) (3,057}
Phoenix/WMUR-TV Swap Transaction — (34,019) —
Acquisition of WBOY-TV — (20,774) —
Disposition of WBOY-TV — 20,765 —
Investment in ProAct Technologies Corp. — — (25,027)
Investment in Geocast Network Systems, Inc. — (37) (8,005)
Investment in Internet Broadcasting Systems, Inc. — (6,028) —
Investment in NBC/Hearst-Argyle Syndication, LLC — (134) —
Proceeds from sale or disposition of assets — 14 3,630
Other, net (8) (473) (781)
Net cash used in investing activities (25,928) (73,017) {62,184)

(continued)
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Consolidated Statements of Cash FIOWS «ontinvea

Years Ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Financing Activities
Credit Facility:

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt $ 367,000 $ 686,000 $ 368,000

Repayment of long-term debt (551,000) {957,000) (433,000)
Dividends paid on preferred stock (1,377) (1,422) (1,422)
Issuance of Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities — 200,000 —
Series A Common Stock repurchases — (4,079) (18,510)
Repayment of Senior Notes — (15,432) (44,439)
Repayment of Senior Subordinated Notes (2,596) — —
Financing costs and other — (5,175) —
Proceeds from employee stock purchase plan 1,589 1,640 2,254
Proceeds from stock option exercises 8,042 112 138
Net cash used in financing activities (178,342) (95,356) (126,979)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,182 (2,520) 148
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 3,260 5,780 5,632
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period S 4,442 $ 3,260 $ 5,780
Supplemental Cash Flow Information:
Businesses Acquired in Purchase Transactions:
Phoenix/WMUR-TV Swap:

Fair market value of assets acquired, net $ 225,971

Fair market value of liabilities assumed, net (35,300)

Fair market value of assets exchanged, net (188,383)

Fair market value of liabilities exchanged, net 31,731
Net cash paid for swap $ 34,019
Acquisition of WBOY-TV:

Fair market value of assets acquired, net $ 21,298

Fair market value of liabilities assumed, net {524)
Net cash paid for WBOY-TV $ 20,774
Cash paid during the year for:

Interest $ 71,313 $ 98,028 $ 115,460

Dividends on Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities $ 15,500 $ — 3 —

Taxes, net of refunds $ 18,404 $ 5,015 $ 30,535

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Hearst-Argyle Television, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) own and operate 24 network-affiliated television
stations in geographically diverse markets in the United States.
Ten of the stations are affiliates of the National Broadcasting
Company, Inc. (NBC), eleven of the stations are affiliates of the
American Broadcasting Companies (ABC), two of the stations
are affiliates of Columbia Broadcasting Systems (CBS) and one
station is affiliated with AOL Time Warner, Inc.’s Warner
Brothers Television Network (WB). Additionally, the Company
provides management services to two network-affiliated and
one independent television station and two radio stations
(the “Managed Stations”). Based upon regular assessments of
the Company’s operations performed by key management, the
Company has determined that its material reportable segment is
commercial television broadcasting. The economic characteris-
tics, services, production process, customer type and distribution
methods for the Company’s operations are substantially similar
and have therefore been aggregated as one reportable segment.

2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
USE OF ESTIMATES

General

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany accounts have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash Equivalents
All highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or
less when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Reccivable

The Company monitors advertisers’ creditworthiness and
adjusts credit limits as deemed appropriate. The Company mon-
itors collections and maintains an allowance for estimated losses
based upon aging of such receivables and specific collection
issues that may be identified. Concentration of credit risk with
respect to accounts receivable is limited due to the large number
of geographically diverse customers, individually small balances
and short payment terms.

Program Rights

Program rights and the corresponding contractual obligations
are recorded when the license period begins and the programs
are available for use. Program rights are carried at the lower of
unamortized cost or estimated net realizable value on a program
-by-program basis, and such amounts are not discounted. Any
reduction in unamortized costs to net realizable value is
included in amortization of program rights in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income. Such reductions in unamor-
tized costs for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000 were not material. Costs of off-network syndicated prod-
ucts, first-run programming, feature films and cartoons are
amortized on the future number of showings on an accelerated

]

basis contemplating the estimated revenue to be earned per
showing, but generally not exceeding five years. Program rights
and the corresponding contractual obligations are classified as
current or long-term based on estimated usage and payment
terms, respectively.

Barter and Trade Transactions

Barter transactions represent the exchange of commercial air
time for programming. Trade transactions represent the
exchange of commercial air time for merchandise or services.
Barter transactions are generally recorded at the fair market
value of the commercial air time relinquished. Trade transac-
tions are generally recorded at the fair market value of the mer-
chandise or services received. Barter program rights and
payables are recorded for barter transactions based upon the
availability of the broadcast property. Revenue is recognized on
barter and trade transactions when the commercials are broad-
cast; expenses are recorded when the merchandise or service
received is utilized. Barter and trade revenues are included in
total revenues on the consolidated statements of income and
were approximately $28.4 million, $29.3 million and $28.4
million respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000. Of these amounts, trade revenues represented
less than 20% in each of the years. Barter and trade expenses
are included in salaries, benefits and other operating costs
under station operating expenses on the consolidated state-
ments of income and were approximately $28.1 million, $29.3
million and $28.1 million, respectively, for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000. Of these amounts, trade
expense represented less than 15% in each of the years.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost.
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives as follows: buildings—40 years; broad-
casting equipment—five to 20 years; office furniture, equipment
and other—three to eight years. Leasehold improvements are
amortized on the straight-line method over the shorter of the
lease term or the estimated useful life of the asset. Management
reviews, on a continuing basis, the financial statement carrying
value of property, plant and equipment for impairment. If
events or changes in circumstances were to indicate that an asset
carrying value may not be recoverable utilizing related undis-
counted cash flows, a write-down of the asset would be
recorded through a charge to operations. The Company has fol-
lowed this policy for determining and measuring impairment of
property and equipment both prior and subsequent to the adop-
tion of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”)
No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets (“SFAS 1447). Management also reviews the con-
tinuing appropriateness of the useful lives assigned to property,
plant and equipment. Prospective adjustments to such lives are
made when warranted.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coninues)

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recorded at cost and include FCC licenses,
goodwill, network affiliations and other intangible assets such
as favorable leases. On January 1, 2002, the Company adopted
SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (“SFAS
142”). As a result, the Company no longer amortizes goodwill
and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives (FCC licenses),
but instead it performs a review for impairment annually, or
earlier if indicators of potential impairment exist. In connection
with adoption of SFAS 142, the Company’s amortization
expense related to goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles
decreased by approximately $86.2 million annually. See Note 4.
For the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company com-
pleted its annual impairment review of goodwill and indefinite-
lived intangibles during the fourth quarter of 2002, The
Company used a fair value approach in accordance with SFAS
142 and found no impairment to goodwill or indefinite-lived
intangibles. Had management used different assumptions in
developing its estimates, the Company’s results may have var-
ied. Management considers the assumptions used in its esti-
mates to be reasonable. The Company amortizes intangible
assets with determinable useful lives over their respective esti-
mated useful lives to their estimated residual values. Upon
adoption of SFAS 142 on January 1, 2002, the Company deter-
mined the remaining useful life of its network affiliation intan-
gible assets to be approximately 28.5 years. The Company
amortizes favorable lease intangible assets over the respective
terms of each lease. In accordance with SFAS No. 144,
Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets, the Company evaluates the remaining useful life of its
intangible assets with determinable lives each reporting period
to determine whether events or circumstances warrant a revi-
sion to the remaining period of amortization,

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 142 on January 1, 2002, the
Company amortized goodwill and intangible assets over periods
ranging from three to 40 years. The recoverability of the carrying
values of goodwill and intangible assets was evaluated quarterly
to determine if an impairment in value had occurred. Pursuant to
SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived
Assets, an impairment in value was considered to have occurred
when it has been determined that the undiscounted future oper-
ating cash flows generated by the acquired business were not suf-
ficient to recover the carrying value of an intangible asset. If it
had been determined that an impairment in value had occurred,
goodwill and intangible assets would have been written down to
an amount equivalent to the present value of the estimated
undiscounted future operating cash flows to be generated by the
acquired business. At December 31, 2001, it was determined
that there had been no impairment of intangible assets.

Deferred Acquisition and Financing Costs

Acquisition costs are capitalized and are included in the pur-
chase price of the acquired stations. Financing costs are deferred
and are amortized using the interest method over the term of
the related debt when funded.
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Investments

The Company has investments in non-consolidated affiliates,
which are accounted for under the equity method if the
Company’s equity interest is from 20% to 50%, and under the
cost method if the Company’s equity interest is less than 20% and
the Company does not exercise significant influence over operat-
ing and financial policies. The Company evaluates its investments
to determine if-an impairment has occurred. Carrying values are
adjusted to reflect realizable value where necessary.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s primary source of revenue is television advertis-
ing. Other sources include network compensation and other
revenues. Advertising revenues and network compensation
together represented approximately 97% of the Company’s
total revenues in each of the years ended December 2002, 2001
and 2000.

» Advertising Revenues. Advertising revenues are recognized
net of agency and national representatives’ commissions and in
the period when the commercials are broadcast. Barter and
trade revenues are included in advertising revenues and are also
recognized when the commercials are broadcast. See “Barter
and Trade Transactions” above.

* Network Compensation. Eleven of the Company’s stations
have network compensation agreements with ABC, ten have
agreements with NBC, and two have agreements with CBS. In
connection with the ABC and CBS agreements, revenue is rec-
ognized when the Company’s station broadcasts specific net-
work television programs based upon a negotiated value for
each program. In connection with the NBC agreements, rev-
enue is recognized on a straight-line basis based upon the cash
compensation to be paid to the Company’s stations by NBC
each year. Unlike the ABC and CBS agreements, the NBC net-
work compensation is an annual amount and is not specifically
assigned to individual network television programs.

¢ Other Revenues. The Company generates revenue from other
sources, which include the following types of transactions and
activities: (i) management fees earned from The Hearst
Corporation {“Hearst”) (see Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements); (ii) services revenue from Lifetime
Entertainment Services (see Note 14 to the consolidated finan-
cial statements); (iii) services revenue from the production of
commercials for advertising customers or from the production
of programs to be sold in syndication; (iv) rental income pur-
suant to tower lease agreements with third parties providing
for attachment of antennas to the Company’s towers; and (v)
other miscellaneous revenues, such as licenses and royalties.



Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes is computed based on the pre-
tax income included in the consolidated statements of income.
The Company provides for federal and state income taxes cur-
rently payable as well as for those deferred because of timing
differences between reporting income and expenses for financial
statement purposes versus tax purposes. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attrib-
utable to differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be
recovered or settled.

Earnings Per Share (“EPS”)

Basic EPS is calculared by dividing net income less preferred stock
dividends by the weighted average common shares outstanding.
Diluted EPS is calculated similarly, except that it includes the dilu-
tive effect, if any, of shares issuable under the Company’s stock
option plan, the conversion of the Company’s Preferred Stock (see
Note 11), or the conversion of the Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Securities (see Note 9). All per share amounts included
in the notes are the same for basic and diluted earnings per share
unless otherwise noted. See Note 7.

Off-Balance Sheet Financings and Liabilities

Other than contractual commitments and other legal contingen-
cies incurred in the normal course of business, agreements for
future barter and program rights not yet available for broadcast
at December 31, 2002, and employment contracts for key
employees, all of which are disclosed in Note 15, the Company
does not have any off-balance sheet financings or liabilities. The
Company does not have any majority-owned subsidiaries that
are not included in the consolidated financial statements, nor
does the Company have any interests in or relationships with
any special-purpose entities that are not reflected in the consoli-
dated financial statements. '

Purchase Accounting

The Company’s policy for allocating the purchase price in a pur-
chase transaction is to identify and determine the fair value of all
acquired assets (tangible and intangible) and assumed liabilities in
accordance with the guidance contained in Accounting Principles
Board Opinion (“APB”) No. 16, Business Combinations, and
SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations. To assist in this process,
the Company utilizes the services of an independent valuation
consulting firm for the purpose of establishing the fair values. The
specialized tangible assets in use at a broadcasting business are
typically valued on the basis of the replacement cost of a new
asset less observed depreciation. The appraisal of other fixed
assets, such as furnishings, vehicles and office machines, is based
upon a comparable sales approach. Identified intangible assets are
valued at estimated fair value. The cash flow assumptions and
discount rates utilized to determine fair values vary according to a
variety of factors, such as a specific station’s geographical loca-
tion, demographics of markets served, existing market conditions,

market rank, financial performance, revenue growth potential,
network affiliation, cost structure, staffing levels, age of facilities
and equipment, capital requirements, whether a station is VHF or
UHE, existing program assets, status of conversion from analog to
digital and the Company’s current cost of capital.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for employee stock-based compensation
under APB No. 25, Stock Issued to Employees (“APB 25”) and
related interpretations. Under APB 235, because the exercise
price of the Company’s employee stock options equals the mar-
ket price of the underlying stock on the date of grant, no com-
pensation expense is recognized. The Company has adopted the
disclosure-only provisions of SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation (“SFAS 123”). See Note 12.

The following table details the effect on net income and earn-
ings per share had compensation expense been recorded based
on the fair value method under SFAS 123, as amended:

Years Ended December 31,
(In thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001 2000
$108,017 $31,087 $44,925

Reported net income
Add:

Total stock-based employee
compensation expense
included in reported net
income, net of related
tax effects — — —

Deduct:

Total stock-based employee
compensation expense
determined under the
fair value method for
all awards, net of related

tax effects (5,981) (4,108)  (3,509)

Pro forma net income $102,036 $26,979 $41,416
Pro forma net income

applicable to common

stockholders $100,659 $25,557 $39,994
Earnings per share:

Basic—as reported $ 116 $ 032 3§ 047

Basic—pro forma $ 109 $ 028 § 043

Diluted—as reported $ 115 $ 032 § 047

Diluted—pro forma $ 1.09 $§ 028 § 043

The Company accounts for the income tax benefit resuliting
from the deduction triggered by the exercise of employee stock
options as a credit to stockholders’ equity (additional paid-in
capital) on the consolidated balance sheets. In accordance with
Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) Issue No. 00-15,
Classification in the Statement of Cash Flows of the Income
Tax Benefit Received by a Company upon Exercise of a
Nongqualified Employee Stock Option, the Company classifies
the reduction of income taxes payable as a result of the deduc-
tion triggered by the exercise of employee stock options as an
increase in operating cash flow on the consolidated statements
of cash flows.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements «ontinues)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements, in con-
formity with generally accepted accounting principles, requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes. On an ongoing basis, the Company evalu-
ates its estimates, including those related to allowances for
doubttul accounts, program rights, barter and trade transactions,
useful lives of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,
carrying value of investments, accrued liabilities, contingent lia-
bilities, income taxes, pension benefits and fair value of financial
instruments. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclasstifications
For comparability, certain prior year amounts have been reclas-
sified to conform with the 2002 presentation.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations (“SFAS 1437), which is effective
January 1, 2003. SFAS 143 requires the recording of the fair
value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in the
period in which it is incurred. The Company does not believe
that the adoption of this statement will have a material effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS 144, which was effec-
tive January 1, 2002. SFAS 144 supersedes existing accounting
literature dealing with impairment and disposal of long-lived
assets, including discontinued operations. The Company does
not believe that the adoption of this statement will have a
material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial state-
ments. However, if in the future the Company were to sell or
otherwise dispose any of its broadcast operating units, under
SFAS 144 such disposal may be required to be reported as a
discontinued operation.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1435, Rescission of
FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections (“SFAS 145”).
Among other matters, SFAS 145 rescinds SFAS No. 4,
Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt,
thereby eliminating the requirement that gains and losses from
the extinguishment of debt be aggregated and, if material, clas-
sified as an extraordinary item, net of the related income tax
effect. The Company adopted SFAS 145 on July 1, 2002. As a
result of the adoption of SFAS 143, the Company accounts for
the impact of the early extinguishment of debt as a component
of interest expense, net, in the accompanying consolidated state-
ments of income. In accordance with SFAS 145, the Company
has reclassified certain amounts reported in prior periods that
were previously classified as extraordinary items, net of related
income taxes. Such reclassifications had no effect upon the
Company’s reported net income, but resulted in a decrease of
approximately $0.9 million and $4.1 million to reported inter-
est expense, net, in the years ended December 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively.
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In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, Accounting for
Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities (“SFAS 146”),
which is effective January 1, 2003. This statement addresses
financial accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit
or disposal activities and nullifies EITF Issue No. 94-3, Liability
Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and
Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs
Incurred in a Restructuring}. The Company does not believe
that the adoption of this statement will have a material effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No.
45, Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Reguirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of
Others (“FIN 457). FIN 45 elaborates on the disclosures to be
made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial state-
ments about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has
issued. FIN 45 requires a gnarantor to recognize, at the incep-
tion of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obliga-
tions undertaken in issuing the guarantee. The disclosure
provisions of FIN 43 are effective for financial statements of
periods ending after December 15, 2002. The Company has
adopted the disclosure provisions. See Note 15. Additionally,
the recognition of a guarantor’s obligation should be applied on
a prospective basis to guarantees issued after December 31,
2002. The Company does not believe that the recognition pro-
visions of FIN 45 will have a material effect on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure
(“SFAS 1487). SFAS 148 amends SFAS 123 to provide alterna-
tive methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair
value-based method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation. The Black-Scholes option-pricing model is com-
monly used in the fair value-based method. In addition, SFAS
148 amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS 123 to require
prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial
statements about the method of accounting for stock-based
employee compensation and the effect of the method used in
reported results. The provisions of SFAS 148 are effective for
financial statements for fiscal years and interim periods ending
after December 15, 2002. The disclosure provisions of SFAS
148 have been adopted by the Company. SFAS 148 did not
require the Company to change to the fair value-based method
of accounting for stock-based compensation.

3. ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSITIONS AND INVESTMENTS

KQCA Acquisition. On January 31, 2000, the Company
acquired the outstanding stock of Channel 58, Inc. (the licensee
for KQCA-TV in Sacramento, California). The Company was
previously programming and selling airtime of KQCA-TV
under an existing Time Brokerage Agreement (“TBA”). The
acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method
of accounting and, accordingly, the purchase price (including
acquisition costs) of approximately $0.9 million was allocated
to the acquired assets and liabilities based upon their fair market
values. Approximately $0.3 million, which represented the



excess of the purchase price and acquisition costs over the fair
market value of the tangible assets acquired less the liabilities
assumed, was allocated to FCC license. Prior to the adoption on
January 1, 2002, of SFAS 142, which discontinued the amorti-
zation of indefinite-lived intangibles, the FCC license was amor-
tized over a period of 40 years. See Note 4.

WXII-AM and WLKY-AM Disposition. On August 8, 2000, the
Company sold two of its radio stations, WXII-AM
(Greensboro, North Carolina) and WLKY-AM (Louisville,
Kentucky), to Truth Broadcasting Corporation for $3.5 million.
This sale resulted in a $1.1 million gain which is included in
Other (income) expense, net, in the accompanying consolidated
statemnent of income for the year ended December 31, 2000.

Phoenix/WMUR Swap. On March 28, 2001, the Company
exchanged its radio stations in Phoenix, Arizona (KTAR-AM,
KMVP-AM and KKLT-FM) (the “Phoenix Stations”), for
WMUR-TV, the ABC affiliate serving Manchester, New
Hampshire, which is part of the Boston, Massachusetts televi-
sion market, in a three-party swap (the “Phoenix/WMUR
Swap”). The Company sold the Phoenix Stations to Emmis
Communications Corporation (“Emmis”) for $160 million, less
transaction expenses and purchased WMUR-TV from WMUR-TV,
Inc. for $185 million, plus a working capital adjustment of $3.5
million and transaction expenses. The acquisition of WMUR-
TV was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting
and, accordingly, the purchase price and related transaction
expenses were allocated to the acquired assets and liabilities
based upon their fair market values. Approximately $179.3 mil-
lion, which represented the excess of the purchase price and
acquisition costs over the fair market value of the tangible
assets acquired less the liabilities assumed, was allocated to
FCC license. Prior to the adoption on January 1, 2002, of SFAS
142, which discontinued the amortization of indefinite-lived
intangibles, the FCC license was amortized over a period of 40
vears. See Note 4. Prior to the Phoenix/WMUR Swap, Emmis
had been managing the Phoenix Stations pursuant to a Time
Brokerage Agreement (“TBA”) since August 1, 2000, and the
Company had been managing WMUR-TV pursuant to a TBA
since January 8, 2001 (effective January 1, 2001, for account-
ing purposes), unti! the acquisition on March 28, 2001. The
purchase price of WMUR-TV was funded through an interme-
diary by approximately: (i) $160 million from Emmis and (ii)
$28.5 million plus the cost of the transaction expenses from the
Company’s revolving credit facility. The Company realized a
gain of $72.6 million on the sale of the Phoenix Stations, which
is recorded in Other (income) expense, net, in the accompany-
ing consolidated statement of income for the year ended
December 31, 2001.

L

WBOY-TV Acquisition and Disposition. On April 30, 2001,
pursuant to an Asset Purchase Agreement entered into with
WBOY-TV, Inc., the Company acquired WBOY-TV, the NBC
affiliate serving the Clarksburg—Weston, West Virginia televi-
sion market for $20 million (the “WBOY Acquisition”) plus a
working capital adjustment of $0.7 million and transaction
expenses. The WBOY Acquisition was accounted for under the
purchase method of accounting and, accordingly, the purchase
price and related transaction expenses have been allocated to
the acquired assets and liabilities based upon their fair market
values. Approximately $18.9 million, which represented the
excess of the purchase price and acquisition costs over the fair
market value of the tangible assets acquired less the liabilities
assumed, was allocated to FCC license. The FCC license was
amortized over a period of 40 years prior to the disposition of
WBOY-TV. The purchase price plus the cost of transaction
expenses were funded using the Company’s revolving credit
facility. The Company later sold WBOY-TV on December 13,
2001 for $20 million plus a working capital adjustment of $0.8
million less transaction expenses.

Unaudited Pro Forma Results of Operations. The following
unaudited pro forma results of operations are presented as
required by applicable accounting rules relating to business
acquisitions and other one-time events. These unaudited pro
forma results are not necessarily indicative of the actual results
that would have been achieved had each of the stations been
acquired at the beginning of the periods presented, nor are they
indicative of future results.

The unaudited pro forma results include: (i) the combined results
of operations of 23 of the Company’s television stations which
were owned for the entire periods presented and (ii) the manage-
ment fees earned by the Company for the entire periods presented
(see Note 14). The unaudited pro forma results have been
adjusted in order to reflect: (i) the Phoenix/WMUR Swap as if the
transaction had occurred on January 1, 2001; (i} the WBOY
Acquisition and later disposition as if both events had never
occurred; (iii) the exclusion of the results of the Company’s pro-
duction and distribution unit prior to August 1, 2001 (see discus-
sion of investment in NBC/Hearst-Argyle Syndication, LLC
below); (iv) the exclusion of Other (income) expense, net; and (v)
the exclusion of amortization of goodwill and certain other intan-
gible assets resulting from new accounting standards as if the new
standards had been effective January 1, 2001. See Note 4.

Years Ended

December 31,
(In thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001
(Unaudited)

Total revenues $721,311  $632,593
Income applicable to common stockholders $106,455 $ 55,654
Net income per common share—basic $ t16 § 061
Net income per common share—diluted $ 115 $§ 0.0
Pro forma number of shares used

in calculations—basic 92,148 91,809
Pro forma number of shares used

in calculations—diluted 92,550 92,000
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contines

Investment in Geocast Network Systems, Inc. In September
1999 and February 2000, the Company invested $2 million
and $8 million, respectively, in Geocast Network Systems, Inc:
(“Geocast”), in return for an equity interest in Geocast,
Geocast planned to deliver a program service, which included
the local stations’ content and other national content and serv-
ices, to personal computer users. As this investment repre-
sented less than a 10% interest, the investment was accounted
for using the cost method. In the fourth quarter of 2000, the
Company wrote-down the investment in Geocast by $5 million
in order to approximate the investment’s realizable value, pur-
suant to the Company’s assessment of various strategic alterna-
tives available to Geocast. In February 2001, the remaining
$5.1 million of the Geocast investment was written-off after
Geocast’s Board of Directors declined various strategic alterna-
tives and decided to liquidate the company. The write-downs
are included in Other {income) expense, net, in the accompany-
ing consolidated statements of income for the years ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000. :

Investment in Internet Broadcasting Systems, Inc. On December 2,
1999, the Company entered into a series of agreements with
Internet Broadcasting Systems, Inc. (“IBS™), and invested $20 mil-
lion in exchange for an equity interest in [BS. With IBS, the
Company and other broadcasters have invested in the develop-
ment and management of [ocal news/information/entertainment
websites. In May 2001, the Company invested an additional $6
million for a total investment of $26 million in IBS. The following
provides a description of the key agreements, along with the asso-
ciated accounting where appropriate:

o Series B Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement. This agreement
was entered into between IBS and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, as well as other investors. Pursuant to this
agreement, the Company initially invested $20 million in TBS.
As of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000,.the Company had
an equivalent equity interest in IBS of approximately 24%,
24% and 23%, respectively. Accordingly, this investment is
accounted for using the equity method. The Company’s share
in the results of IBS is included in Equity in loss of affiliates in
the accompanying consolidated statements of income for the
vears ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000.

e [BS/HATV LLC (Limited Liability Company) Agreement.
This agreement was entered into by the Company and IBS to
establish the IBS/HATV LLC, of which the Company owns
49.9% and IBS owns 50.1%. The IBS/HATV LLC is con-
trolled and managed by IBS and is the parent company of 24
wholly-owned subsidiary limited liability companies estab-
lished to own and operate the websites for each of the
Company’s television stations. The term of the agreement is
indefinite until an agreement is reached by the parties to ter-
minate. Under this agreement, net losses incurred by the
IBS/HATV LLC are allocated 100% to IBS. Net income is to
be allocated in proportion to the ownership interests.
Through September 30, 2002, the IBS/HATV LLC incurred
net losses since its inception in December 1999. In the fourth
quarter of 2002, the IBS/HATV LLC achieved profitability,
and the Company began to record its 49.9% share of net
income using the equity method. The Company’s share in the
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results of the IBS/HATV LLC is included in Equity in loss of
affiliates in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income for the year ended December 31, 2002,

o Website Development and Operating Agreement. This agree-
ment was entered into by the Company, IBS and the
IBS/HATV LLC. The initial term of the agreement is six
years, with additional three-year renewal terms unless a party
gives written notice of its intention not to renew. Under this
agreement, IBS designs, develops and operates each of the
Company’s stations’ websites owned by the wholly-owned
subsidiary companies under the IBS/HATV LLC. The
accounting for the activities under this agreement is included
in the accounts and financial results of the IBS/HATV LLC.

* Website License Agreement. This agreement was entered into
by the Company, IBS and the IBS/HATV LLC and runs co-
terminous with the Website Development and Operating
Agreement described above. Under this agreement, the
Company has granted to IBS a nonexclusive license to use
and display certain programming content and Company
trademarks and logos on the each of the websites owned by
the wholly-owned subsidiary companies under the
IBS/HATV LLC.

In connection with the above agreements, the Company is able
to offer its customers advertising packages containing both spot
television as well as Internet advertising. In the sale of such
packages, the Company acts as the sales agent to each of the
subsidiary companies under the IBS/HATV LLC. The revenue
from spot advertising is recognized by the Company’s stations,
and the revenue from Internet advertising is recognized by the
subsidiary companies under the IBSHATV LLC.

Investment in ProAct Technologies Corp. On March 22, 2000,
the Company invested $25 million in ProAct Technologies
Corp. (“ProAct”) for an equity interest in ProAct. ProAct is a
provider of human resources and benefits management solu-
tions for employers and health plans. As this investment repre-
sents less than a 20% interest in ProAct, the investment is
accounted for using the cost method. In March 2001, the
Company wrote-down its investment in ProAct by $18.8 mil-
lion in order to approximate the investment’s realizable value.
The write-down is included in Other {income) expense, net in
the accompanying consolidated statement of income for the
year ended December 31, 2001. The Company has received rev-
enue from ProAct relating to advertising sales. See Note 14.

Investment in NBC/Hearst-Argyle Syndication, LLC. On
August 7, 2001, the Company contributed its production-and-
distribution unit to NBC/Hearst-Argyle Syndication, LLC in
exchange for a 20% equity interest in this entity. NBC/Hearst-
Argyle Syndication, LLC is a limited liability company formed
by NBC Enterprises and the Company to produce and syndicate
first-run broadcast and original-for-cable programming. This
investment is accounted for using the equity method. The
Company’s share in the results of NBC/Hearst-Argyle
Syndication, LLC is included in Equity in loss of affiliates in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income for the years
ended December 31, 2002 and 2001.



4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets at December 31, 2002 and 2001, consist of the
following:

(In thousands) 2002 2001
Gross value:
FCC licenses $2,479,034  $2,479,034
Goodwill 957,258 957,625
Network affiliations 95,493 95,493
Favorable leases 746 746
Total gross value 3,532,531 3,532,898
Accumulated amortization:
FCC licenses (190,866) (190,866)
Goodwill (158,121)  (158,121)
Network affiliations (29,318) (26,928)
Favorable leases (408) (339)
Total accumulated amortization (378,713) (376,254)
Total intangible assets, net $3,153,818  $3,156,644

On Japuary 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS 142, which
requires that goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite use-
ful lives (FCC licenses) no longer be amortized but instead be
assessed for impairment at least annually by applying a fair
value-based test. SFAS 142 also requires that intangible assets
with determinable useful lives be amortized over their respective
estimated useful lives to their estimated residual values and
reviewed for impairment in accordance with SFAS 144,

The Company completed its annual goodwill impairment
review during the fourth quarter of 2002 using a fair value
approach in accordance with SFAS 142 and found no impair-
ment. In addition, no evidence of impairment was found with
regard to the Company’s FCC licenses. In 2002, the Company
made an adjustment of approximately $0.4 million to the carry-
ing value of goodwill to finalize certain purchase accounting
adjustments.

The following table adjusts reported income applicable to com-
mon stockholders and earnings per share for the years ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000 (prior to the adoption date of
SFAS 142), to exclude amortization of goodwill and other
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives:

Income Applicable
to Common Income per
Stockholders Common Share—
(In thousands) Basic and Diluted
Year Ended December 31, 2001
As reported $ 29,665 $0.32
Amortization of goodwill and
certain other intangibles,
net of tax effects 58,656 ‘ 0.64
Adjusted $ 88,321 $0.96
Year Ended December 31, 2000
As reported $ 43,503 $0.47
Amortization of goodwill and
certain other intangibles,
net of tax effects 58,755 0.64
Adjusted $102,258 $1.11

—

The Company’s amortization expense for definite-lived intangi-
ble assets was approximately $2.5 million in the year ended

‘December 31, 2002. Estimated annual amortization expense for

the next five years related to these intangible assets is expected
to be as follows:
(In thousands)

2003 $2,465
2004 2,453
2005 2,441
2006 2,423
2007 2,411

5. ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities at December 31, 2002 and 2001, consist of
the following:

(In thousands) 12002 2001

Payroll, benefits and related costs §18,319 § 9,971
Accrued income taxes 10,984 20,177
Accrued interest 9,505 9,583
Accrued vacation 4,722 4,662
Accrued payables 2,838 3,306
Other taxes payable 1,299 1,392
Orther accrued liabilities 6,460 10,474
Total accrued liabilities $54,127  $59,565

6. LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt at December 31, 2002 and 2001, consisted of
the following:

(In thousands) 2002 2001
Credit Facility $ 91,000 $ 275,000
Senior Notes 432,110 432,110
Private Placement Debt 450,000 450,000
Senior Subordinated Notes — 2,596
Capital Lease Obligations 389 499
973,499 1,160,205
Less current portion (121) (110)
Total long-term debt $973,378  $1,160,095

Credit Facility

On April 12, 1999, the Company retired its existing $1 billion
revolving credit facility and replaced it with two new revolving
credit facilities (the “New Credit Facilities”) with a consortium
of banks led by JP Morgan Chase Bank (formerly known as
The Chase Manhattan Bank) (“Chase”), Bank of New York,
Toronto Dominion and Bank of Montreal. The New Credit
Facilities were structured as a $1 billion revolver {the “$1
Billion Facility™) and a $250 million 364-day facility (the
“$250 Million Facility”). Management elected not to renew the
$250 Million Facility on April 10, 2000.
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On August 15, 2001, the Company exercised its contractual
right to reduce the lender commitments of the $1 Billion Facility
to $750 million (hereafter, the “Credit Facility”). The Credit
Facility, which had an outstanding balance of $91 million and
$275 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, will
mature on April 12, 2004,

Outstanding principal balances under the Credit Facility bear
interest at either, at the Company’s option, LIBOR or the alter-
nate base rate (“ABR”), plus the “applicable margin.” The
“applicable margin” for ABR loans is zero. The “applicable
margin” for LIBOR loans varies between 0.75% and 1.25%
depending on the ratio of the Company’s total debt to operating
cash flow (“leverage ratio”). The ABR is the higher of (i)
Chase’s prime rate; (ii) 1% plus the secondary market rate for
three-month certificates of deposit; or (iii) 0.5% plus the rates
on overnight federal funds transactions with members of the
Federal Reserve System. The Company is required to pay an
annual commitment fee based on the unused portion of the
Credit Facility. The commitment fee ranges from 0.2% to 0.3%.
For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, the
effective interest rate on borrowings from the Credit Facility
outstanding during the year was 4.1%, 5.3% and 7.5 %, respec-
tively. The Credit Facility is a general unsecured obligation of
the Company.

Senior Notes

The Company issued $125 million principal amount of 7.0%
senior notes due 2007, priced at 99.616% of par, and $175 mil-
lion principal amount of 7.5% debentures due 2027, priced at
98.823% of par, on November 7, 1997 and $200 million princi-
pal amount of 7.0% senior notes due 2018, priced at 98.887%
of par, on January 13, 1998 (collectively, the “Senior Notes”).
The Senior Notes are senior and unsecured obligations of the
Company. Proceeds from the Senior Notes offerings were used to
repay existing indebtedness of the Company. See discussion of
Private Placement Debt and Senior Subordinated Notes below.

During 2000, the Company repaid (i) $28.0 million of its 7.5%
Senior Notes due November 135, 2027, at a discounted price of
$24.8 million, and (ii) $22.7 million of its 7.0% Senior Notes
due January 15, 2018, at a discounted price of $19.6 million.
These repayments were funded by the Company’s existing credit
facility. The Company wrote-off the pro-rata share of deferred
financing fees related to the Senior Notes which were repaid.
The discounts from the repayments, net of the write-off of the
deferred financing fees, resulted in a gain of approximately $4.1
million, before income tax expense, which was reclassified as
Interest expense, net, in the accompanying consolidated state-
ment of income in the year ended December 31, 2000, in accor-
dance with SFAS 145,

During 2001, the Company repaid (i) $1.3 million of its 7.0%
Senior Notes due January 135, 2018, at a discounted price of
$1.1 million, and (ii) $15.9 million of its 7.5% Senior Notes
due November 15, 2027, at a discounted price of $14.3 million.
These repayments were funded by the Credit Facility. The
Company wrote-off the pro-rata share of deferred financing fees
related to the Senior Notes which were repaid. The discounts
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from the repayments, net of the write-off of the deferred financing
fees, resulted in a gain of approximately $0.9 million, before
income tax expense, which was reclassified as Interest expense,
net in the accompanying consolidated statement of income in the
year ended December 31, 2001, in accordance with SFAS 145.

Private Placement Debt

In connection with its acquisition of KCRA-TV {see Note 3},
the Company issued $450 million in senior notes to institutional
investors (the “Private Placement Debt”). Of the $450 million
principal amount, $340 million was issued on December 15,
1998, and $110 million was issued on January 14, 1999. The
Private Placement Debt is a general unsecured obligation of the
Company with a maturity of 12 years, an average life of 10
years and an interest rate of 7.18% per annum. The Company
used the proceeds from the Private Placement Debt to partially
fund the acquisition of KCRA-TV. $90 million of the Private
Placement Debt is due in 2006 and the remainder is due there-
after. See Note 3.

Senior Subordinated Notes

In October 1995, Argyle Television, Inc., which was merged
with a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hearst on August 29, 1997
(hereafter the “Hearst Transaction”), issued $150 million of
senior subordinated notes (the “Senior Subordinated Notes™),
which were due in 2005 and bore interest at 9.75% payable
semi-annually. The Senior Subordinated Notes were general
unsecured obligations of the Company. In December 1997 and
February 1998, the Company repaid $45 million and $102.4
million, respectively. In July 2002, the Company repaid the
remaining balance of $2.6 million. In connection with the
redemption, the Company paid a premium of approximately
$84,000, which has been included in Interest expense, net, in
the accompanying consolidated statements of income in the year
ended December 31, 2002.

Aggregate Maturities of Long-Term Debt
Approximate aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt
{excluding capital lease obligations) are as follows: '

(In thousands)

2003 $ —
2004 91,000
2008 —
2006 90,000
2007 215,000
Thereafter 577,110
Total $973,110




Debt Covenants and Restrictions

The Company’s debt obligations contain certain financial and
other covenants and restrictions on the Company. Certain of the
financial covenants include credit ratios such as leverage, inter-
est coverage and fixed charges coverage. However, such
covenants do not include any triggers explicitly tied to the
Company’s credit ratings or stock price. The Company is in
compliance with all such covenants and restrictions as of
December 31, 2002.

The Credit Facility does provide, however, that all outstanding
balances will become due and payable at such time as Hearst’s
(and certain of its affiliates’) equity ownership in the Company
becomes less than 35% of the total equity of the Company and
Hearst and such affiliates no longer have the right to elect a
majority of the members of the Company’s Board of Directors.

Interest Rate Risk Management
The Company is rot involved in any derivative financial instru-
ments. However, the Company may consider certain interest
rate risk strategies in the future.

Interest Expense, Net
Interest expense, net, for the years ended December 31, 2002,
2001 and 2000, consisted of the following:

(In thousands) 2002 2001 2000

Interest on borrowings:

Credit Facility $ 7,744 § 32,765 $ 45926
Senior Notes 30,903 31,899 35,264
Private Placement Debt 32,310 32,310 32,310

Senior Subordinated Notes 232 253 253
Amortization of deferred

financings costs and other 2,953 2,938 4,401
Total interest expense 74,142 100,165 118,154

Gain on early retirement of debt — 873 4,077
Interest income 699 567 1,991
Total interest expense, net $73,443 $98,725  $112,086

R

7. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following tables set forth a reconciliation between basic
EPS and diluted EPS, in accordance with SFAS 128, Earnings
Per Share. See Note 2 under “Earnings Per Share” (“EPS”).

Year Ended December 31, 2002

(In thousands, except Income Shares Per Share
per share data) (Numerator) (Denominator) Amount
Net income $108,017
Less: Preferred stock dividends (1,377)
Basic EPS
Income applicable to
common stockholders $106,640 92,148 $1.16
Effect of Dilutive Securities
Assumed exercise
of stock options — 402
Diluted EPS
Income applicable to common
stockholders plus
assumed conversions $106,640 92,550 $1.15

Year Ended December 31, 2001

(In thousands, except Income Shares Per Share
per share data) (Numerator) (Denominator) Amount
Net income $31,087
Less: Preferred stock dividends (1,422)
Basic EPS
Income applicable to
common stockholders $29,665 91,809 $0.32
Effect of Dilutive Securities
Assumed exercise
of stock options — 191
Diluted EPS
Income applicable to common
stackholders plus
assumed conversions $29,665 92,000 $0.32

Year Ended December 31, 2000

Per Share
Amount

Shares
{Denominator)

Income
(Numerator)

$44,925
(1,422)

(In thousands, except
per share data)

Net income
Less: Preferred stock dividends
Basic EPS
Income applicable to

common stockholders
Effect of Dilutive Securities
Assumed exercise

of stock options — 22

Diluted EPS

Income applicable to common
stockholders plus
assumed conversions

$43,503 92,435 $0.47

$43,503 92,457 $0.47
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The following shares were not included in the computation of
diluted EPS because to do so would have been anti-dilutive for
the periods presented: (i) 9,281 shares of Series A Preferred
Stock, outstanding as of December 31, 2002, and 10,938 shares
of Series A Preferred Stock, outstanding as of December 31,
2001 and 2000, which are convertible into Series A Common
Stock (see Note 11); (ii) 10,938 shares of Series B Preferred
Stock, outstanding as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 (such
shares were not convertible prior to 2001), which are convert-
ible into Series A Common Stock (see Note 11); and (iii)
1,400,000 shares of Series A Redeemable Convertible Preferred
Securities and 2,600,000 shares of Series B Redeemable
Convertible Preferred Securities, outstanding as of December 31,
2002 and 2001, which are convertible into Series A Common
Stock {see Note 9).

Common stock options for 2,943,959, 3,367,821 and
2,129,845 shares of Series A Common Stock (before application
of the treasury stock method), outstanding as of December 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, were not included in the
computation of diluted EPS because the exercise price was
greater than the average market price of the common shares
during the calculation period.

8. INCOME TAXES
The provision for income taxes relating to income for the
years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, consists of

the following:
Years Ended December 31,

(In thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Current:
State and local $ 2,184 3§ 605 § 2,693
Federal 12,284 13,922 43,311
14,468 14,527 46,004
Deferred:
State and local 3,621 4,004 (33)
Federal 48,112 8,917 (7,911)
51,733 12,921 (7,944)
Provision for income taxes $66,201 $27,448 $38,060

The effective income tax rate for the years ended December 31,
2002, 2001 and 2000, varied from the statutory U.S. Federal
income tax rate due to the following:

2002 2001 2000

Statutory U. S. Federal income tax 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes, net of

Federal tax benefit 2.2 5.1 2.0
Other nondeductible

business expenses 0.3 6.8 9.2
Other adjustments 0.5 0.1 —
Effective income tax rate 38.0% 47.0% 46.2%
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Deferred income tax liabilities and assets at December 31, 2002
and 2001, consist of the following:

(In thousands) 2002 2001

Deferred income tax liabilities:
Difference between book and tax

basis of property, plant and equipment ~ § 48,197 § 44,962
Accelerated funding of pension
benefit obligation 7,517 5,453
Difference between book and tax
basis of intangible assets 789,677 743,397
Total deferred income tax liabilities 845,391 793,812
Deferred income tax assets:
Accrued expenses and other 3,483 5,218
Operating loss carryforwards 27,697 18,553
31,180 23,771
Less: Valuation allowance (27,697) (18,553)
Total deferred income tax assets 3,483 5,218
Net deferred income tax liabilities $841,908 $788,594

The net deferred income tax liabilities are presented under the
following captions on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets:

(In thousands) 2002 2001

Current assets:

Deferred income taxes $ 2,873 § 3,733
Noncurrent liabilities:

Deferred income taxes 844,781 792,327
Net deferred income tax liabilities $841,908 $788,594

The Company has net operating loss carryforwards for state
income tax purposes of approximately $275.6 million, which
expire between 2003 and 2021.

The valuation allowance is the result of an evaluation of the
uncertainty associated with the realization of certain state
deferred income tax assets.

9. COMPANY OBLIGATED REDEEMABLE
CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED SECURITIES OF
SUBSIDIARY TRUST HOLDING SOLELY PARENT
COMPANY DEBENTURES

On December 20, 2001, the Company completed a private
placement of $200 million principal amount of Redeemable
Convertible Preferred Securities through Hearst-Argyle Capital
Trust, a wholly-owned subsidiary trust of the Company (the
“Capital Trust™). The Capital Trust issued 1,400,000 shares of
Series A Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities due 2016
{liquidation preference $50 per redeemable convertible pre-
ferred security) (the “Series A Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Securities”) for an aggregate of $70,000,000, and
2,600,000 shares of Series B Redeemable Convertible Preferred
Securities due 2021 (liquidation preference $50 per redeemable
convertible preferred security) (the “Series B Redeemable
Convertible Preferred Securities” and, together with the Series A
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities, the “Redeemable



Convertible Preferred Securities”) for an aggregate of
$130,000,000, to institutional investors. The investor group
included Hearst Broadcasting, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Hearst. Hearst Broadcasting, Inc. purchased an aggregate of
300,000 shares of the Series A Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Securities and an aggregate of 500,000 shares of the
Series B Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities for a total
of $40 million. Hearst-Argyle Television, Inc., the parent com-
pany of the Capital Trust, has made a full and unconditional
guarantee of the Capital Trust’s payments on the Redeemable
Convertible Preferred Securities. See Note 15. The Company
used the net proceeds of the Redeemable Convertible Preferred
Securities to repay a portion of the outstanding balance under
its Credit Facility, thereby reducing the Company’s overall debt.

As part of the transaction, the Company issued and sold to the
Capital Trust, in exchange for the proceeds from the sale of
the Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities, $72,164,960
in aggregate principal amount of 7.5% convertible junior sub-
ordinated deferrable interest debentures Series A, due 2016 (the
“Series A Subordinated Debentures”) and $134,020,640 in
aggregate principal amount of 7.5% convertible junior subordi-
nated deferrable interest debentures Series B, due 2021 (the
“Series B Subordinated Debentures” and, together with the
Series A Subordinated Debentures, hereafter the “Subordinated
Debentures”). The Subordinated Debentures issued to the
Capital Trust by the parent company, Hearst-Argyle Television,
Inc., in the combined aggregate principal amount of $206,185,600
were issued in exchange for (i) the receipt of the proceeds of
$200.0 million from the issuance of the Redeemable
Convertible Preferred Securities; and (ii) $6,185,600 which was
owed by the parent company to the Capital Trust for its pur-
chase of $6,185,600 of the Capital Trust’s common stock as
part of the initial capitalization of the Capital Trust. The
Capital Trust does not hold any other significant assets other
than the $206,185,600 in note receivable from the parent for
the Subordinated Debentures. As the Capital Trust is wholly-
owned by the parent company, this note receivable eliminates in
consolidation against the parent company’s note payable to the
Capital Trust for the Subordinated Debentures on the
Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

The Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities are effectively
convertible, at the option of the holder at any time, into shares
of the Company’s Series A Common Stock, par value $.01 per
share through an exchange of such Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Securities for a portion of the Subordinated
Debentures of the corresponding series held by the Capital
Trust. The conversion terms are identical for all holders of the
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities, including Hearst.
The Series A Subordinated Debentures are convertible into the
Company’s Common Stock at an initial rate of 2.005133 shares
of the Company’s Common Stock per $50 principal amount of
Series A Subordinated Debentures (equivalent to a conversion
price of $24.9360 per share of the Company’s Common Stock)
and the Series B Subordinated Debentures are convertible into
the Company’s Common Stock at an initial rate of 1.972262
shares of the Company’s Common Stock per $50 principal

amount of Series B Subordinated Debentures (equivalent to a
conversion price of $25.3516 per share of the Company’s
Common Stock). When the Subordinated Debentures are repaid
or redeemed, the same amount of Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Securities will simultaneously be redeemed with the
proceeds from the repayment or redemption of the
Subordinated Debentures. The Series A Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Securities mature on December 31, 2016 with distri-
butions payable thereon at a rate of 7.5% per year. The Series B
Redeemable Ceonvertible Preferred Securities mature on
December 31, 2021 with distributions payable thereon at a rate
of 7.5% per year.

The Series A Subordinated Debentures mature on December 31,
2016 and bear interest at a rate of 7.5% per year. The Series B
Subordinated Debentures mature on December 31, 2021, and
bear interest at a rate of 7.5% per year. The Company has the
right to defer interest on the Subordinated Debentures (and
therefore distributions on the Redeemable Convertible Preferred
Securities) by extending the interest payment period from time
to time in accordance with and subject to the terms of the
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities. Further, the Series
A Subordinated Debentures may be redeemed at the option of
the Company (or at the direction of Hearst) at any time on or
after December 31, 2004 and the Series B Subordinated
Debentures may be redeemed at the option of the Company (or
at the direction of Hearst) at any time on or after December 31,
2006. The redemption prices (per $50 principal amount) of the
Series A Subordinated Debentures range from $52.625 in 20035,
declining to $50.375 in 2011 and $50 thereafter to maturity.
The redemption prices (per $50 principal amount) of the Series B
Subordinated Debentures range from $51.875 in 2007, declining
to $50.375 in 2011 and $50 thereafter to maturity.

10. COMMON STOCK

In connection with the Hearst Transaction, the Company’s
Certificate of Incorporation was amended and restated pursuant
to which, among other things, (i) the Company’s authorized
common stock, par value $.01 per share, was increased from 50
million to 200 million shares (100 million shares designated as
Series A Common Stock and 100 million shares designated as
Series B Common Stock); (ii) Series B Common Stock was
authorized and thereafter 41.3 million shares were issued to
Hearst in connection with the transaction; and, (iii) the
Company’s existing Series A Preferred Stock and Series B
Preferred Stock received voting rights.

On March 17, 1999, the Company amended and restated the
Certificate of Incorporation to increase the number of author-
ized shares of Series A Common Stock from 100 million to 200
million, increasing the Company’s total authorized shares of
common stock to 300 million. Except as otherwise described
below, the issued and outstanding shares of Series A Common
Stock and Series B Common Stock vote together as a single class
on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders, with each
issued and outstanding share of Series A Common Stock and
Series B Common Stock entitling the holder thereof to one vote
on all such matters. With respect to any election of directors, (i)
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the holders of the shares of Series A Common Stock are entitled
to vote separately as a class to elect two members of the
Company’s Board of Directors (the Series A Directors) and (ii)
the holders of the shares of the Company’s Series B Common
Stock are entitled to vote separately as a class to elect the bal-
ance of the Company’s Board of Directors (the Series B
Directors), provided, however, that the number of Series B
Directors shall not constitute less than a majority of the
Company’s Board of Directors.

All of the outstanding shares of Series B Common Stock are
held by a subsidiary of Hearst. No holder of shares of Series B
Common Stock may transfer any such shares to any person
other than to (i) Hearst; (ii) any corporation into which Hearst
is merged or consolidated or to which all or substantially all of
Hearst’s assets are transferred; or, (iii) any entity controlled or
consolidated or to which all or substantially all of Hearst’s
assets are transferred; or, (iv) any entity controlled by Hearst
(each a “Permitted Transferee”). Series B Common Stock, how-
ever, may be converted at any time into Series A Common Stock
and freely transferred, subject to the terms and conditions of the
Company’s Certificate of Incorporation and to applicable secu-
rities laws limitations.

In May 2001, the Company’s stockholders and Board of
Directors approved the amendment and restatement of the
Company’s 1997 Stock Option Plan (the “Stock Option Plan™).
The amendment increased the number of shares reserved for
issuance under the Stock Option Plan to 8.7 million shares of
the Company’s Series A Common Stock. See Note 12.

In May 1998, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the
repurchase of up to $300 million of its outstanding Series A
Common Stock. The Company expects such repurchases to be
effected from time to time in the open market or in private
transactions, subject to market conditions and management
considerations. As of December 31, 2002, the Company has
spent approximately $80.7 million to repurchase approximately
3.2 million shares of Series A Common Stock at an average
price of $25.24.

Hearst has also notified the Company and the Securities and
Exchange Commission of its intention to purchase up to 20 mil-
lion shares of the Company’s Series A Common Stock from time
to time in the open market, in private transactions or otherwise.
As of December 31, 2002, Hearst had purchased approximately
15.6 million shares of the Company’s outstanding Series A
Common Stock. Hearst’s ownership in the Company was 65.6%
and 65.9% as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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11. PREFERRED STOCK

The Company has one million shares of authorized preferred
stock, par value $.01 per share. Under the Company’s Certificate
of Incorporation, the Company has two issued and outstanding
series of preferred stock, Series A Preferred Stock and Series B
Preferred Stock {(collectively, the “Preferred Stock™). The Series A
Preferred Stock had 10,938 shares issued and 9,281 shares out-
standing as of December 31, 2002, and 10,938 shares issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2001 and 2000. The Series B
Preferred Stock had 10,938 shares issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000. The Preferred Stock has a
cash dividend feature whereby each share accrues $65 per share
annually, to be paid quarterly. '

The Series A Preferred Stock is convertible at the option of the
holders, at any time, into Series A Common Stock at a conver-
sion price {the “Series A Conversion Price”) of (i) on or before
December 31, 2000, $35; (ii) during the calendar year ended
December 31, 2001, $38.50; and (iii) during each calendar year
after December 31, 2001, the product of 1.1 times the preceding
year’s Series A Conversion Price. The Company has the option
to redeem all or a portion of the Series A Preferred Stock at any
time at a price equal to $1,000 per share plus any accrued and
unpaid dividends. If a holder elects to exercise their conversion
right and (i) the Company has not given written notice of
redemption and (ii) the average of the closing price for the
Company’s Series A Common Stock for the ten trading days
prior to the date of conversion (the “10-Day Average Price™) is
less than the Series A Conversion Price as defined above, then
the Series A Conversion Price shall be equal to the 10-Day
Average Price.

On July 29, 2002, a holder of the Company’s Series A Preferred
Stock exercised their right to convert 1,657 shares of Series A
Preferred Stock into 79,959 shares of the Company’s Series A
Common Stock.

The Series B Preferred Stock is convertible at the option of the
holders, at any time, into Series A Common Stock at a conver-
sion price equal to the average of the closing prices for the
Series A Common Stock for each of the 10 trading days prior
to such conversion date. The Company has the option to
redeem all or a portion of the Series B Preferred Stock at any
time at a price equal to $1,000 per share plus any accrued and
unpaid dividends.



12. EMPLOYEE STOCK PLANS

1997 Stock Option Plan

In 1997, the Company’s stockholders and Board of Directors
approved the amendment and restatement of the Company’s sec-
ond amended and restated 1994 Stock Option Plan and adopted
such plan as the resulting 1997 Stock Option Plan (the “1997
Stock Option Plan”). The amendment increased the number of
shares reserved for issuance under the 1997 Stock Option Plan
to 3 million shares of Series A Common Stock. The stock
options are granted with exercise prices equal to the market
price of the underlying stock on the date of grant. Options,
granted prior to December 2000, cliff-vest after three years
commencing on the effective date of the grant, and a portion of
the options vest either after nine years or in one-third incre-
ments upon attainment of certain market price goals of the
Company’s stock. Options granted in December 2000 vest in
one-third increments per year commencing one year from the
date of the grant. All options granted pursuant to the 1997
Stock Option Plan will expire no later than ten years from the
date of grant.

In May 2001, the Company’s stockholders and Board of
Directors approved the amendment and restatement of the 1997
Stock Option Plan (the “Stock Option Plan”). The amendment
increased the number of shares reserved for issuance under the
Stock Option Plan to 8.7 million shares of Series A Common
Stock. Each option is exercisable after the period or periods spec-
ified in the applicable option agreement, but no option can be
exercised after the expiration of 10 years from the date of grant.

A summary of the status of the Company’s Stock Oprtion Plan as
of December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, and changes for the years
ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, is presented below:

Weighted Average
Options Exercise Price
Outstanding at December 31, 1999 2,494,401 $26.18
Granted 3,015,078 $18.58
Exercised (13,750} $10.00
Forfeited (311,470) $26.43
Outstanding at December 31, 2000 5,184,256 $21.79
Granted 1,249,891 $21.02
Exercised (8,100} $13.81
Forfeited (106,723) $20.21
Outstanding at December 31, 2001 6,319,324 $20.71
Granted 1,235,650 $24.22
Exercised (376,829) $21.34
Forfeited (567,647) $22.06
Outstanding at December 31, 2002 6,610,498 $22.16
Exercisable at December 31, 2000 1,679,224 $26.17
Exercisable at December 31, 2001 2,693,875 $23.52
Exercisable at December 31, 2002 3,139,652 $22.25

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2002:

Options Qutstanding

Options Exercisable

Number Weighted Average Number

Range of Outstanding Remaining Weighted Average Exercisable Weighted Average
Exercise Prices at 12/31/02 Contractual Life Exercise Price at 12/31/02 Exercise Price
$10.00-$10.93 34,850 2.3 years $10.00 34,850 $10.00
$14.58-318.21 13,600 3.0 years $17.39 13,600 $17.39
$18.22-521.86 3,593,389 8.1 years $19.38 1,668,844 $18.71
$21.87-$25.50 1,156,375 9.7 years $24.06 28,500 $23.80
$25.51-$29.15 1,792,569 5.2 years $26.60 1,374,143 $26.68
$32.79-$36.44 19,715 5.6 years $36.33 19,715 $36.33

6,610,498 7.6 years $22.16 3,139,652 $22.25

RS
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As of December 31, 2002, the Company has reserved 1,646,067
million shares of Series A Common Stock for future grants
under the Stock Option Plan.

The Company accounts for employee stock-based compensation
under APB 25 and related interpretations. Under APB 23,
because the exercise price of the Company’s employee stock
options equals the market price of the underlying stock on the
date of grant, no compensation expense is recognized.

Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per
share is required by SFAS 123 and has been determined as if the
Company had accounted for its employee stock options under
the fair value method of SFAS 123. The fair value of these
options was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model for options granted in 2002, 2001
and 2000. The weighted average fair value of options granted
was $8.73, $8.18 and $7.79 and 2002, 2001 and 2000, respec-
tively. The following assumptions were used for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000:

2002 2001 2000
Risk-free interest rate 3.03% 4.6% 5.9%
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Volatility factor 35.3% 35.3% - 36.3%

Expected life 5 years 5 and 7 years 5 and 7 years
The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for
use in estimating the fair value of traded options, which have no
vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition,
option valuation models require the input of highly subjective
assumptions including the expected stock price volatility.
Because the Company’s employee stock options have character-
istics significantly different from those of traded options, and
because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materi-
ally affect the fair value estimate, in management’s opinion, the
existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single
measure of the fair value of its employee stock options.

See Note 2 under “Stock-Based Compensation” for the pro
forma effect on net income and earnings per share had compen-
sation expense been recorded based on the fair value method
under SFAS 123, as amended.

13. STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

In April 1999, the Company implemented a noncompensatory
employee stock purchase plan (“ESPP”) in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 423. The ESPP allows employees
to purchase shares of the Company’s Series A Common Stock at
85% of its market price through after-tax payroll deductions.
The Company reserved and made available for issuance and
purchases under the Stock Purchase Plan 5,000,000 shares of
Series A Common Stock. Employees purchased 80,123 and
93,706 shares for aggregate proceeds of approximately $1.6
million in the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001.
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14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Hearst Corporation. As of December 31, 2002, Hearst
owned approximately 37.8% of the Company’s Series A
Common Stock and 100% of the Company’s Series B Common
Stock, representing in the aggregate approximately 65.6% of
the outstanding voting power of the Company’s common stock.
During the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, the
Company entered into the following transactions with Hearst or
parties related to Hearst:

¢ Management Agreement. The Company recorded revenues of
approximately $3.3 million, $2.4 million and $4.4 million in
the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respec-
tively, relating to a management agreement with Hearst (the
“Management Agreement”). Pursuant to the Management
Agreement, the Company provides certain management serv-
ices, such as sales, news, programming, and financial and
accounting management services, with respect to certain
Hearst owned or operated television and radio stations. The
Company believes that the terms of the Management
Agreement are reasonable to both parties; however, there can
be no assurance that more favorable terms would not be
available from third parties.

» Services Agreement. The Company incurred expenses of
approximately $3.8 million, $3.9 million and $3.8 million in
the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respec-
tively, relating to a services agreement with Hearst (the
“Services Agreement”). Pursuant to the Services Agreement,
Hearst provides the Company certain administrative services
such as accounting, financial, legal, insurance, data processing
and employee benefits administration. The Company believes
that the terms of the Services Agreement are reasonable to both
parties; however, there can be no assurance that more favor-
able terms would not be available from third parties.

* Dividend on Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities.
The Company incurred dividends expense relating to
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities of approxi-
mately $3.0 million and $0.1 million in the years ended
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively, relating to divi-
dends payable to Hearst, which holds $40 million of the total
$200 million Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities
issued in December 2001 by a wholly-owned subsidiary trust
of the Company. See Note 9.

¢ Radio Facilities Lease. Pursuant to a lease agreement, Hearst
paid the Company approximately $0.7 million per year in
the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respec-
tively. Under this agreement, Hearst leases from the
Company premises for WBAL-AM and WIYY-FM, Hearst’s
Baltimore, Maryland radio stations. The term of the lease
commenced on September 1, 1997, and was subsequently
extended on September 1, 2000, and will continue as to the
space occupied by each radio station, respectively, until the
earlier of (i) Hearst’s divestiture of the radio station to a
third party, in which case either party (i.e., the Company or



the buyer of the station) will be entitled to terminate the
lease with respect to that station upon certain prior written
notice, or (ii} August 31, 2003.

* Lifetime Entertainment Services. The Company recorded
revenues of approximately $2.5 million, $1.3 million and $0.2
million from Lifetime Entertainment Services (“Lifetime”) in
the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respec-
tively. The Company has an agreement with Lifetime, an
entity owned 50% by an affiliate of Hearst and 50% by ABC,
whereby (i) the Company assists Lifetime in securing Lifetime
Movie Nerwork distribution and subscribers; and (ii) Lifetime
provides services to the Company in respect to the negotiation
of the Company’s retransmission consent agreements.

o Other Transactions with Hearst. In the year ended December
31, 2002, the Company recorded net revenues of approxi-
mately $0.7 million relating to advertising sales to Hearst on
behalf of ESPN Classic, a property of ESPN, Inc., which is
owned 20% by an affiliate of Hearst and 80% by ABC.

NBC. In August 2001, the Company contributed its produc-
tion-and-distribution unit to NBC/Hearst-Argyle Syndication,
LLC, in exchange for a 20% equity interest in this entity.
NBC/Hearst-Argyle Syndication, LLC, is a limited liability com-
pany formed by NBC Enterprises and the Company to produce
and syndicate first-run broadcast and original-for-cable pro-
gramming. This investment is accounted for under the equity
method. See Note 3. The Company’s share of the loss in
NBC/Hearst-Argyle Syndication, LLC, is included in Equity in
loss of affiliates in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income. Since August 2001, Emerson Coleman, an officer of the
Company, has served on the Management Committee of
NBC/Hearst-Argyle Syndication, LLC, from which he does not
receive compensation for his services.

IBS. In December 1999, the Company invested $20 million of
cash in IBS in exchange for an equity interest in IBS. In May
2001, the Company invested an additional $6 million of cash for
a total investment of $26 million in IBS. This investment is
accounted for under the equity method. See Note 3. The
Company’s share of the loss of IBS is included in Equity in loss of
affiliates in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income. Since January 19, 2001, Harry T. Hawks, Executive
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, and
since October 2, 2002 Terry Mackin, Executive Vice President of
the Company, have both served on the Board of Directors of IBS,
from which they do not receive compensation for their services.
From December 2, 1999, through October 2, 2002, David J.
Barrett, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
and from December 2, 1999, through January 19, 2001, Bob
Marbut, former Chairman of the Board of Directors and Co-
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, served on the Board of
Directors of IBS, from which neither received compensation for
their services. In addition, IBS also provides hosting services for
the Company’s corporate website for a nominal amount,

ProAct Technologies Corporation. The Company recorded
approximately $3.2 million, $1.2 million and $5.5 million in the
vears ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, relating to
advertising sales to ProAct, one of the Company’s equity interest
investments (which is accounted for under the cost method). See
Note 3. Since February 2003 Harry T. Hawks, the Company’s
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, has served
on the Board of Directors of ProAct, from which he does not
receive compensation for his services. From March 2000 through
December 2002, Bob Marbut, former Chairman of the Board of
Directors and Co-Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
served on the Board of Directors of ProAct, from which he did
not receive compensation for his services.

JP Morgan Chase Bank. The lead agent bank under the
Company’s $750 million credit facility entered into in April
1999 is JP Morgan Chase Bank (“Chase™). The credit facility
matures on April 12, 2004, and borrowings thereunder bear
interest at an applicable margin that varies based on the
Company’s ratio of total debt to operating cash flow. The
Company is required to pay an annual commitment fee based
on the unused portion of the credit facility. Frank A. Bennack,
Jr., a Director of the Company, is also a Director of Chase.

Argyle Communications, Inc. The Company had a consulting
agreement with Argyle Communications, Inc. (“ACI”) begin-
ning January 1, 2001 through December 31, 2002, for the serv-
ices of Bob Marbut, the Company’s former nonexecutive
Chairman of its Board of Directors, in connection with his ren-
dering advice and his participation in strategic planning and
other similar services. This agreement was not renewed in 2003.
The Company has made payments of approximately $0.4 mil-
lion in both years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, in con-
nection with the consulting agreement with ACI. Mr. Marbut is
the sole stockholder of ACI. In addition, ACI has a separate
consulting agreement with Hearst Communications, Inc., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Hearst.

Other Related Parties. In the ordinary course of business, the
Company enters into transactions with other related parties,
none of which were significant to the Company’s financial
results in the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000.

15. OTHER COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company has obligations to various program syndicators
and distributors in accordance with current contracts for the
rights to broadcast programs. Future payments and barter obli-
gations as of December 31, 2002, scheduled under contracts for
programs available are as follows:

(In thousands) Program Rights  Barter Rights

2003 $42,067 $15,605
2004 4,990 508
2005 2,590 307
2006 303 14
2007 — 10
Thereafter — 1

$49,950 $16,445
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The Company has various agreements relating to noncancelable operating leases with an initial term of one year or more (some of
which contain renewal options), future barter and program rights not available for broadcast at December 31, 2002, and employ-
ment contracts for key employees. Future minimum payments and barter obligations under terms of these agreements as of

December 31, 2002 are as follows:

Deduct Net Operating Employment

Operating  Operating Lease Program Barter and Talent
(In. thousands) Leases Sublease Commitments Rights Rights Contracts
2003 $ 6,707 $ (886) $ 5,821 $ 22,585 § 7,951 $ 54,669
2004 5,169 (907) 4,262 49,103 15,764 31,317
2005 4,342 (302) 4,040 42,802 12,454 13,935
2006 2,770 — 2,770 23,410 9,104 5,283
2007 2,417 — 2,417 6,492 5,285 2,371
Thereafter 6,599 — 6,599 6,659 1,793 809

$28,004 $(2,095) $25,909 $151,051 $52,351 $108,384

Rent expense, net, for operating leases was approximately $8.6
million, $8.3 million and $8.1 million for the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

From time to time, the Company becomes involved in various
claims and lawsuits that are incidental to its business. In the
opinion of the Company, there are no legal proceedings pending
against the Company or any of its subsidiaries that are likely to
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial condition or results of operations.

The Company has guaranteed the payments by its wholly-owned
consolidated subsidiary trust (the Capital Trust) on the
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities in the amount of
$200.0 million. See Note 9. The guarantee is irrevocable and
unconditional, and guarantees the payment in full of all (i) distri-
butions on the Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities to
the extent of available funds of the Capital Trust; (ii) amounts
payable upon redemption of the Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Securities to the extent of available funds of the Capital
Trust; and (ili) amounts payable upon a dissolution of the
Capital Trust. The gnarantee is unsecured and ranks (i) subordi-
nate to all other liabilities of the Company, except liabilities that
are expressly made pari passu; (ii) pari passu with the most sen-
ior preferred stock issued by the Company, and pari passu with
any guarantee of the Company in respect of any preferred stock of
the Company or any preferred security of any of the Company’s
controlled affiliates; and (iii) senior to the company’s Common
Stock. The Company made the guarantee to enable the Capital
Trust to issue the Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities in
the amount of $200.0 million to the holders.
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16. PENSION AND EMPLOYEE SAVINGS PLANS

In connection with the Hearst Transaction, the Company
assumed the obligations of the Hearst Broadcast Group’s non-
contributory defined benefit plan and Hearst’s nonqualified
retirement plan for non-union employees, and Hearst’s defined
benefit plans for eligible employees covered by collective bar-
gaining agreements. These plans are collectively referred to as
the “Pension Plans.” In addition, the Company purchased the
excess of the fair value of the plan’s assets over the pension ben-
efit obligation for shares of the Company’s Series B Common
Stock. Beginning January 1, 1998, the Company began to pro-
vide the noncontributory defined benefit plans to the
Company’s remaining non-union employees who were not
included in the Pension Plans at December 31, 1997.

On January 1, 1999, the Company adopted the final plan
design of a supplemental retirement plan. In previous years, the
Company recorded estimated expenses for potential liabilities
based on a proposed plan design. The disclosure presentation
below includes the acrual liabilities and expenses based on the
final plan design. The actual liabilities and expenses are not
materially different from recorded estimated expenses for
potential liabilities and are not expected to have a material
effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

On March 18, 1999, the Company acquired the nine television
and five radio stations of Pulitzer Publishing Company in a
merger transaction. In connection with this transaction, the
Company assumed liabilities for the retirement benefits of the
transferring Pulitzer Broadcasting Company employees.
Immediately following the merger transaction, the Company
began to provide the retirement plan to the Pulitzer Broadcasting
Company non-union employees. Eligible transferring union
employees began participation in a new defined benefit plan.



The plans described above are collectively referred to as the
“Hearst-Argyle Pension Plans.”

Benefits under the Hearst-Argyle Pension Plans are generally based
on years of credited service, age at retirement and average of the
highest five consecutive years’ compensation. The cost of the
Hearst-Argyle Pension Plans is computed on the basis of the Project
Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method. Past service cost is amortized
over the expected future service periods of the employees.

During 2000, the Company implemented a voluntary Incentive
Retirement Program (“IRP”) to a group of employees who met
certain criteria for age and length of service. The 110 employees
who elected to participate in the IRP received an incentive retire-
ment benefit, additional age and years of service in calculating
pension benefits and postretirement medical benefits. This plan
resulted in a one-time charge of $15.4 million, which is included
in the special charge in the accompanying consolidated statement
of income for the year ended December 31, 2000.

The following schedule presents net pension cost (benefit) for
the Company’s defined benefit plans in the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000:

Pension Benefits

The following schedule presents the change in benefit obligation,
change in plan assets and a reconciliation of the funded status
for the Company’s defined benefit plans as of December 31,
2002 and 2001:

Pension Benefits

(In thousands) 2002 2001
Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 85,672 § 76,464
Service cost 5,206 4,606
Interest cost 6,194 5,669
Participant contributions 8 8
Plan amendments (58) 901
Benefits and administrative

expenses paid (4,215) (7,926)

Actuarial loss 9,374 5,950

Benefit obligation at end of year $102,181 § 85,672
Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at
beginning of year $ 94,358  $120,579

Actual (loss) on plan assets, net (7,531) (20,081)
Employer contributions 3,054 1,778

Participant contributions 8 8
Benefits and administrative

expenses paid (4,215) (7,926)

(In thousands) 2002 2001 2000
Service cost S 5206 $ 4,606 § 4,679
Interest cost 6,194 5,669 4,442
Expected return on plan assets (10,579) (10,433) (10,150)
Amortization of prior service cost 492 438 442
Amortization of transitional asset (113) (113) (113)
Recognized actuarial gain (437) (1,406) (1,984}
Net periodic cost (benefit) 763 (1,239) (2,684)
Curtailment gain recognized — — (113)
Special termination benefit charge — — 12,604
Net pension cost {benefit) $ 763 § (1,239) §$ 9,807

Fair value of plan assets end of year $ 85,674 $ 94,358

Reconciliation of funded status:

Funded status $(16,506) $ 8,686
Contributions paid during the

fourth quarter 5 258
Unrecognized actuarial loss 38,188 10,267
Unrecognized transition asset (202) (315)
Unrecognized prior service cost 3,454 4,004

Net amount recognized

at end of year S 24,939 § 22,900

The following schedule presents net pension cost for the

Company’s postretirement benefit plan in the years ended
December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000:

Postretirement Benefits

Amounts recognized in the
statement of financial position:
Other assets
Other liabilities
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

$ 29,861 $ 30,266
(12,219) (7,366)
7,297 —

Net amount recognized

(In thousands) 2002 2001 2000 at end of year § 24,939 § 22,900

Service cost $ 54 % 45 $ 47 Additional year-end information for

Interest cost 307 318 122 pension plans with accumulated

Amortization of prior service cost 17 17 17 benefit obligations in excess

Amortization of transitional asset 18 18 18 of plan assets:

Recognized actuarial gain — (6) (79) Projected benefit obligation $ 42,247 § 15,110
Net periodic cost 396 392 125 ?CF““‘I‘I*“C? bf“f” obligation $ ;i’;g; g 12’;2

Curtailment gain recognized — — 30 air value of plan assets § 24, >

Special termination benefit charge — - 2,079 TH hted ) df ) h

eignt ave € assumptions used ror computing the pro-

Net pension cost $§ 396 $ 392 § 2234 ¢ weighted averag P " putng P

jected benefit obligation as of December 31, 2002 and 2001,

were as follows:
Pension Benefits

2002 2001
Discount rate 6.88% 7.50%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets  9.00% 9.00%
Rate of compensation increase 4.00% 5.50%
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The measurement dates for the above discount rate and rate of
compensation increase assumptions were September 30, 2002
and 2001. The measurement date for the above expected long-
term rate of return on plans assets was September 30, 2001
and 2000.

In its calculation of projected benefit obligations and net pen-
sion expense, respectively, as of and in the vear ending
December 31, 2003, management anticipates that it will use an
assumed expected long-term rate of return of 8.0%.

The following schedule presents the change in benefit obliga-
tion, change in plan assets and a reconciliation of the funded
status for the Company’s postretirement benefit plan as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001:

Postretirement
Benefits
(In thousands) 2002 2001
Change in benefit obligation:

Benefir obligation at beginning of year $ 4,311 $3,832
Service cost 54 45
Interest cost 307 319
Benefits and administrative expenses paid (505) (374)
Actuarial loss 279 489

Benefit obligation at end of year $ 4,446 $ 4,311

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year § - $ —

Employer contributions 505 374
Benefits and administrative expenses paid (505) (374)
Fair value of plan assets end of year s — $ —
Reconciliation of funded status:
Funded status 5(4,446) $(4,311)
Contributions paid during the
fourth quarter 129 118
Unrecognized actuarial (gain) (74) (353)
Unrecognized transition obligation 165 183
Unrecognized prior service cost 147 164
Net amount recognized at end of year  $(4,079) $(4,199)
Amounts recognized in the statement
of financial position:
Other assets $ — $ —
Other liabilities (4,079) (4,199)
Net amount recognized at end of year  §{4,079) $(4,199)

The weighted average assumptions used for computing the pro-
jected benefit obligation as of December 31, 2002 and 2001 are
as follows:
Postretirement
Benefits

2002 2001
6.88% 7.50%

Discount rate

The measurement dates for the above weighted average assump-
tions were September 30, 2002 and 2001.
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For measurement purposes, the annual rate of increase in the per
capita cost of covered health care benefits was assumed to range
from 8% to 11%. These rates are assumed to decrease gradually
to 5% through 2008 and remain at that level thereafter.

The assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant
effect on the amounts reported for the health care plan. A one-
percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend rates
would have the following effects:
One- One-
Percentage- Percentage-

(In thousands) Point Increase  Point Decrease

Effect on total of service cost

and interest cost components $ 34 $ (28)
Effect on postretirement
benefit obligation $388 $(327)

The Hearst-Argyle Pension Plans’ assets consist primarily of
stocks, bonds and cash equivalents. I connection with the Hearst
Transaction, the Company was allocated the pension costs that
were contributed by the Hearst Broadcast Group to multiem-
ployer union pension plans. No information is available for each
of the other contributing employers for this plan. The Company’s
contributions to the multiemployer union pension plans in the
years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000 were approxi-
mately $0.7 million, $0.7 million and $0.6 million, respectively.

The Company’s qualified employees may contribute from 2% to
16% of their compensation up to certain dollar limits to self-
directed 401(k) savings plans. In certain 401(k) savings plans,
the Company matches in cash, one-half of the employee contri-
bution up to 6% of the employee’s compensation. The assets in
the 401(k) savings plans are invested in a variety of diversified
mutual funds. The Company contributions to the 401(k) sav-
ings plans in the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and
2000 were approximately $2.2 million, $2.0 million and $2.1
million, respectively.

17. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and the estimated fair values of the
Company’s financial instruments for which it is practicable to
estimate fair value are as follows (in thousands):

December 31, 2002 December 31, 2001
Carrying Fair

Carrying Fair

Value Value Value Value
Credit Facility $91,000 § 91,025 $275,000 $274,343
Senior Subordinated Notes — — 2,596 2,718
Senior Notes 432,110 435,835 432,110 397,206
Private Placement Debt 450,000 461,861 450,000 453,613
Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Securities 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000

The fair values of the Senior Subordinated Notes and the Senior
Notes were determined based on the quoted market prices. The
fair values of the Credit Facility, the Private Placement Debt and
the Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities were deter-
mined using discounted cash flow models.



For instruments including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and other debt the carrying amount
approximates fair value because of the short maturity of these instruments. In accordance with the requirements of SFAS No. 107,
Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments, the Company believes it is not practicable to estimate the current fair value of
the related party receivabies and related party payables because of the related party nature of the transactions.

18. QUARTERLY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

(In thousands, except per share data) 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
Total revenues $154,922 $148,342  $182,303 $176,368 S176,475 $145,188  8207,611 $171,978
Operating income 46,416 18,825 72,957 44,420 63,697 14,454 82,561 37,744
Net income (loss) 14,315 20,277 30,779 9,703 25,175 (6,442) 37,748 7,549
Income (loss) applicable to

common stockholder(2) 13,959 19,921 30,424 9,348 24,838 (6,797} 37,419 7,193
Income (loss) per common

share basic:(b)
Net income (loss) $ 015 $ 022 $ 033 $ 010 $ 027 $ (0.07) S 041 $ 0.08
Number of common shares

used in the calculation 91,870 91,864 92,099 91,767 92,273 91,792 92,344 91,815
Income (loss) per common

share diluted:®!
Net income (loss) $ 015 § 022 $ 033 $ 010 $§ 027 $ (007 § 039 §$ 0.08
Number of common shares

used in the calculation 92,118 92,133 92,683 91,976 92,606 91,792 100,721 91,912

(a) Net income applicable to common stackholders gives effect to dividends on the Preferred Stack issued in connection with the acquisition of KHBS-TV/IKHOG-TV.

(b) Per common share amounts for the guarters and the full years have each been calculated separately. Accordingly, quarterly amounts may not add to the annual
amounts because of differences in the average conmon shares outstanding during each period and, with regard to diluted per common share amounts only, because
of the inclusion of the effect of potentially dilutive securities only in the periods in which such effect would have been dilutive.

Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

The Company’s Series A Common Stock is listed on the NYSE
under the symbol “HTV.” All of the outstanding shares of the
Company’s Series B Common Stock are currently held by
Hearst Broadcasting, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hearst
Holdings, which is in turn a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hearst.
The Series B Common Stock is not publicly traded. The table
below sets forth, for the calendar quarters indicated, the
reported high and low sales prices of the Series A Common
Stock on the NYSE.

2001 High Low
First Quarter $24.25 $19.85
Second Quarter 23.00 18.55
Third Quarter 22.20 16.87
Fourth Quarter 21.56 16.70

2002
First Quarter 825.87 $18.80
Second Quarter 27.76 21.67
Third Quarter 25.52 19.29
Fourth Quarter 28.48 21.52

EEEEEEE———————

On March 18, 2003, the closing price for the Series A Common
Stock on the NYSE was $21.59, and the approximate number
of shareholders of record of the Series A Common Stock at the
close of business on such date was 721.

The Company has not paid any dividends on the Series A
Common Stock or the Series B Common Stock since inception
and does not currently expect to pay any dividends on either
class in the immediate future, The Company’s credir facility (the
“Credit Facility”) with a consortium of banks (led by JP
Morgan Chase Bank, Bank of New York, Torontc Dominion
and Bank of Montreal) limits the ability of the Company to pay
dividends under certain conditions.
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Certifications

1, David J. Barrett, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Hearst-Argyle Television, Inc. (the “registrant”);

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not mislead-
ing with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this annual report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 132-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
annual report is being prepared;

b} Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the fil-
ing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

c) Presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on our
evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and
the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant’s ability
to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weak-
nesses in internal controls; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the regis-
trant’s internal controls; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not there were significant changes
in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent
evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 31, 2003

Name: David J. Barrett
Title:  President and Chief Executive Officer
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I, Harry T. Hawks, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Hearst-Argyle Television, Inc. (the “registrant”);

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not mislead-
ing with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly present
in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this annual report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
{as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
annual report is being prepared;

b} Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days prior to the fil-
ing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”); and

¢) Presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures based on our
evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the registrant’s auditors and
the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the registrant’s ability
to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the registrant’s auditors any material weak-
nesses in internal controls; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the regis-
trant’s internal controls; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not there were significant changes
in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of our most recent
evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 31, 2003

%%%W

Name: Harry T. Hawks

Title:

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Operating cash flow, free cash flow and their associated margin percentages are non-GAAP financial measures which the Company
has included because management believes that such data are commonly used as a measure of performance among companies in the
broadcast industry. These measures are also frequently used by investors, analysts, valuation firms and lenders, although their defi-
nitions may vary. Management uses the operating cash flow measure in analyzing the Company’s financial performance.
Management uses the free cash flow measure in analyzing the Company’s liquidity. These non-GAAP financial measures should not
be considered in isolation or as an alternarive to operating income {a GAAP financial measure) as an indicator of the Company’s
operating performance (see the accompanying consolidated statements of income), or to net cash provided by operating activities (a
GAAP financial measure) as a measure of the Company’s liquidity (see the accompanying consolidated statements of cash flow).
These measures are believed to be, but may not be comparable to, similarly titled measures used by other companies.

The following table provides a reconciliation between operating income (a GAAP financial measure) and operating cash flow and
free cash flow (both non-GAAP financial measures):

December 31,

(In thousands) 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Operating income $265,631 $115,443 $ 205,235 $175,884 $142,034
Add: Special charge — — 15,362 — —
Add: Depreciation and amortization 43,566 129,420 125,207 108,039 36,420
Add: Amortization and program rights 60,821 57,676 58,460 60,009 42,344
Less: Program payments (59,870) (57,385) (58,797) (56,402) (42,947)
Operating cash flow $310,148 $245,154 $ 345,467 $ 287,530 $177,851
Less: Interest expense, net(l! (70,490) (96,660) (111,762) (103,692} (37,139)
Less: Dividends _ (16,377) (1,922) (1,422) (1,422) (1,422)
Less: Capital expenditures (25,920) (32,331) (32,001) (52,402) (22,722)
Less: Cash paid for taxes, net of refunds (18,404) (5,0135) {30,535) (36,155) (4,222)
Free cash flow $178,957 $109,226 $ 169,747 $§ 93,859 $112,346

(1) Excludes the following noncash items: (i) amortization of deferred financing costs of $2,953, $§2,938, $4,401, $3,200 and $2,416 in the years ended December 31, 2002,

2001, 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively; and (ii) gain (loss) on early retirement of debt of 3873, 84,077, $(5,133) and $(17,274) in the years ended December 31, 2001,
2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively.
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This annual report includes forward-looking statements. We have based these forward-looking statements on our current
expectations and projections about future events, Forward-looking statements include information preceded by, followed
by, or that includes the words “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “could,” ar similar expressions. For these statements, the
Company claims the protection of the safe harbor for forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The forward-looking statements contained in this report, concerning, among other things,
changes in net revenues, cash flow and operating expenses, involve risks and uncertainties, and are subject to change
based on various important factors, including the impact of changes in national and regional economies, our ability to service
and refinance our outstanding debt, successful integration of acquired television stations (including achievement of synergies
and cost reductions), pricing fluctuations in local and national advertising, future regulatory actions and conditions in the
television stations’ operating areas, competition from others in the broadcast television markets served by the Company,
volatility in programming costs, the effects of governmental regulation of broadcasting, industry consolidation, technological
developments and major world news events. We undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events ar otherwise. In light of these risks, uncertainties
and assumptions, the forward-looking events discussed in this report might nat occur.
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